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Licensing Regime for Professionalism and Quality Service

ok X

JfE = Vision

BORABTBYUXREEXENERNEE
EhRREREE -

To promote the professionalism and
quality of the property management
industry to make Hong Kong a better
place for living.
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ﬁ np Mission >
BEMEBSERE  RTENHE &
HREEATHITER  vEMRES l

EENEBRZHOEGE  UMEEER
HERE -

To regulate property management

services; set standards for integrity,

competence and professionalism of |
the industry; encourage a culture of

learning; and promote synergy among
stakeholders for the continuous

development of the profession.




H & CONTENTS

2 4 FEBER 44<4 FEEEE

Highlights of the Year Review of the Year
RS E EERE
Strategic Priorities Regulating by Licensing
EE PR HE BRI AE
Major Milestones Setting Professional Standard
SEFEEEE
< Iﬁﬂ’f}ﬁﬁé Encouraging Continuing Professional Development
8 Chairperson’s Message -
REE SR
Providing Anti-epidemic Support
e 3
14 qBeEms BTSN
Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Financial Highlights

20 < ?*ﬁ%iﬁ . << BEBEEBRE
orporate Governance 72 Active Communication
ERSNEE: 1

TGRS E BB

PMSA’s Functions Active Communication with Stakeholders

EERKE
Members of the PMSA

EEAE
Events and Activities

Z8¢g
Committees
84 << RS
ARREE Financial Statements

Executive Office



GERIES

List of Abbreviations

ME A E
[BFREEXRZ RS
PSS PN
RBAE

RENE
(BREH)
ExXAM

ME

&
i}
%
Zll

Ny
U
>

BE

on

s

IS
E R B
sl EXERE

ggl' )
pu}

Anti-epidemic Support Scheme

CPD

DMC Manager
HAD

ICAC

Levy Regulation
oo

PM

PMC

PMP

PMSA

PMSO

RPB

MEEEEA (REFENRLAER) FURSIRAE
EERIHEERERGE]

RBEHEE

COEBERS (BER) £ 01)
MEREE

MEEIR N A

MEEEA
MEEEXEER

CHRE RG]
EERRAIEREXERE

Anti-epidemic Support Scheme for Environmental Hygiene
and Security Staff in Property Management Sector

Continuing Professional Development

Deed of Mutual Covenant Manager

Home Affairs Department

Independent Commission Against Corruption
The Property Management Services (Levy) Regulation
Owners’ Organisations

Property Management

Property Management Company

Property Management Practitioner

Property Management Services Authority
Property Management Services Ordinance

PMSA Recognised Professional Bodies



- mipe SR S
rliginilie)riis of
IR E;



FEHRE
Highlights of the Year

HKBRE B Strategic Priorities

BmE—F %%”ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*”ﬁ%%‘zf BEEENGHVEXRLRNEMT  BBIEHERE]  THE
ﬁ%’f? IMTHEFEEE I ZBEET  BERTEM  RERBRERERRE  REESS
ﬁlﬁkﬂ%ﬂ%%”@iﬁa’ﬁmuﬁéﬁrﬁ*” °

In the last year, the Property Management Services Authority continued to serve as the industry
advocate and adopt a three-pronged approach of “regulating by licensing”, “setting professional
standard” and “encouraging continuing professional development” through collaboration with different
Government departments, public bodies and industry associations to galvanise efforts in enhancing the
status and professionalism of the PM industry.

HIERE

Regulating by Licensing

#%@:%%’EHEE%IJFQEEE&E‘TBE %’éHﬁ‘E%HFZEﬂﬁHﬂ%T

32 months since the Around 1 20 days remain in the 3-year
implementation of the PM transitional period of the
industry licensing regime licensing regime

BYE E 385 E B LA Since the implementation of the PM industry licensing regime :

O & AR PMP licence -
(@ ] ;HjﬁﬁiFéMP licence : o 68 0/0 32 0/0

X =] N 7 e 7
Issued over 1 1 800 PMP licences IE-URRRR PRI R AR
Formal licences Provisional licences
’_% Y& N R g R PMC Ilcence
= BERA A [E] b2 PR
[m]
L\;\,X Received over 600 appl|cat|ons Issued over 430 PMC licences

T EEREE

Setting Professional Standard

Fih 01857 T BRI R RAFIES IR

Issued Codes of Conduct and Best Practice Guides

IR
Handled 73 oTo;plaints 683 cases 32 cases M= &]

BEERBELEA EES YNl B

were within PMSA's involved licensees 0 2==

jurisdiction

MEEBEEEER
2022-23 BFHE




EiEE & Data as at 31.3.2023

BT EER

Encouraging Continuing Professional Development

[HEHERRENE | LBABLKEHEERRE CPD Scheme implemented on a voluntary basis

2022 2023
290 R BERERER S RFBERERER
Organised CPD seminars Organised CPD seminar

A BEEER (R BE£EE]TE) 32 Al EERIRUEERR] 55 22
85 R Recognised 35 RP

Recognised PB activities/courses B activities/courses

M [FEREERGE] S0 a2m —
Launched CPD Scheme e-Recording System

0 A 55() EERAEATHERES . (H R
Over

licensed PMPs fulfilled the Scheme’s i

CPD hour requirement %D -0
C y — o

RN E

Providing Anti-epidemic Support SN

BEoh - BEE RN MITBNES & [ EREES | TR [WE &R & - mEMN
AEE  SFEARET  IXENMEERERFERREEIRTEEIIENAIRDE
ABRHMEZIE -

In addition, the PMSA completed the implementation of the Anti-epidemic Support
Scheme under the sixth round of the Government’s Anti-epidemic Fund and provided

financial support to frontline PM workers performing duties related to environmental
hygiene or security in private residential, composite, industrial and commercial buildings.

BRI B (Eva==1-11
Handled over1 8 1 0 apphcahons Granted nearly 1 8 hundred million in subsidies

BRETE 1 90 000 HFNK 4 BEBFRERBHNRSRDE AR

Benefiting almost frontline PM workers serving in around 40,000 buildings

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority



FEHRE
Highlights of the Year

BEEHIEM® Major Milestones

» 4.2022

WEEH

TIE#E N (REPETRBRE M LEER) 257sr Al -

Gazetted and issued the Code of Conduct entitled “Carrying
out Procurement for Clients and Prevention of Bid-rigging”.

RIEE R RT LA R R A
HEERBE -

Organised CPD seminar on mediation
techniques and innovative technology.

[

» 7.2022

HHEREASERA BF  RET i

EEAERNYE ARG LA - AR e ws
Launched TV and Radio Announcements ,—“« " '
in the Public Interest to remind the public
to pay attention as to whether the PMC
they have engaged are licensed.

TIZEL (REESFR) LR

BRI E) Ryl o
BEFRSRSR EElRIE

Gazetted and issued the Codes
| of Conduct entitled “Handling
Emergencies” and “Handling
Scaffolding Works”.

MEEREEER
4 2022-23 AE R



» 8.2022

RE_E [BEREMETERREFE | RERA
Set up exhibition booth at the 2nd International
Property Management and Procurement Expo.

(5]
ISA

)

RRTABREREEENNERRS [MERE] -

Awarded over 100 PMCs which took the lead to
be licensed as “PM Pioneers”.

» 9.2022

AERRAT

e-Recording System.

i (BEERERHE) BT

Launched the CPD Scheme

BARBRNERERBHMAENBREEHEREAER
[FHEBERRTE] RYBENNIYEEFELZS
RS EEESRES

Specialist in infectious diseases and Chair of Infectious
Diseases of the Department of Microbiology of the
University of Hong Kong Professor YUEN Kwok-
yung delivered a keynote speech at the CPD seminar
on how PM may make properties safer and more
hygienic, thus preventing virus from spreading.

ANHANRBRER
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HEH [PMSA] FHEMAER -
Launched the “PMSA” mobile app.

Annual Report 2022-23
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Highlights of the Year

» 10.2022

=5 HE i 5 AR 75 2 38 -
HE IS

B[R ARERENE RRL RIGH 3% SRR P

ionalism & Integrity
]

RAOFHEEXRRBLE -

Organised CPD seminar on
anti-corruption and the latest
development of security services.

FFE GREMMITIE) BsPsrhl -
Gazetted and issued the Code of Conduct
entitled “Handling Suspended Working
Platform Works”.

AANAA';A y
» 11.2022

MAHETERE [RRFEE
RAT#82022 — 2B A B
# o

Two staff members were
awarded the Ombudsman’s |
Awards 2022 for Officers of
Public Organisations.

BHFE-BEME AR -

B = i’g H& .
Eﬁgsﬁgiﬁsﬁwiﬁis Issued the 10,000" PMP licence.

SERETT [MESIRETE] - BT 18187t
EEL  BERETZ 19 BERIGMERT -

Completed the implementation of the Anti-
Epidemic Support Scheme, granted nearly
$1.8 billion in subsidies, and benefiting
almost 190,000 frontline PM workers.

MEEREEER
6 2022-23 EE S



12.2022
H—EEEREERMALS -

New Chairperson and members of the
PMSA appointed.

BMBAERBTHRENWRIRE
LENFREERERBE
Organised CPD seminar on
building maintenance and
scaffolding work safety.

3.2023

RIRB R B ABEREFEEEERABE -
Organised CPD seminar on energy conservation and
carbon reduction as well as tree planting and preservation.

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority
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EERS—mMBLE  EEBSEFR
B BYEXER o EBFSE
B BERE | [HEERERE ]
kRISZBERASEEE] 57 HE
HESH  RABTBUERERE
Ay RIRIE KT RERAFEE
REFHIREK - —EREVENIL
(o

The PMSA will, as it has always been,
continue to strive and collaborate with
various stakeholders of the PM industry to
raise the professional status and service
standard of the industry in Hong Kong
and build a brighter future for the industry
through “Regulating by Licensing”, “Setting
Professional Standard” and “Encouraging

Continuing Professional Development”.

BEIREL  ALHESE  ATm+
*FE
Dr James WONG Kong-tin, BBS, JP

Chairperson

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority.
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Chairperson’s Message
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RAFEERBRE REFEHIMATT — B
EREEETR(EER)  YHUEENH
MREREEREBKBEIRR2022-23FF
WREFEHE - BT RHH2022F4 A1
HZE2023F3 A1 HHMMEETER
KRR EREE -

B RRUOBHEERAETFEHMESR
# B LB EMENK B EHRIBHART -
RERE REERIFETREER
WHHEBYEER (ME) FERFLE
RER - EEEEENGR  EERKE
MEBEBRBH IS - UREERT
BHERETERRLBATIET - OE
KERFIENR2020F8 A5 EMHETT - A
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F—EEERKEEWR2022F 12 A1
HEER  TH=F KRTEFEZED
RKESN - WHEHETGHKE - SEKE
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BEm HEBMEX HREBEEH
HERBRAORHNER  TEELEE
BRI R AL - IBE N EREEESER
BREITH AT S ¥AREFRERA]
ER o

HZE2023F3A31H EEREHLA
11,8008 Y& AHEER + LA 430% AT
NAEINERR o LI - —RINBEESIEHNEE
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BESTET HE140BRTTFARRGTEE
M - RERREMYEFFENEBLIES
NRELTHETEERTE] - AFE
MEANBEFEEEEE T EIMEK -
WiEBRPAEIFEESHBENES - &
BFEME NS B IOAEMERE - 1B
HEOKF - HEEFIE o

MEEBEEER
2022-23 FEFEHE

Counting Down to New Milestone for

Property Management

| am deeply grateful and honoured to join the new term of
the PMSA, and to present as the Chairperson on behalf of all
Members of the PMSA the 2022-23 Annual Report which sets
out our accomplishments from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023
and outlines our future plans.

First and foremost, | wish to express my heartfelt gratitude
to the founding Chairperson of the PMSA Hon Tony TSE and
Members of the past two terms for their dedicated services
during their term which laid a solid foundation for the work of
the PMSA and contributed significantly to the development of
the property management (PM) industry. Under the leadership
of the founding Chairperson and through the driving work of
the PMSA Members and the HAD, as well as the concerted
efforts of all staff members of the PMSA Executive Office,
the PM industry licensing regime has been implemented
since August 2020 and it has received positive feedback and
support from the industry.

The new term of the PMSA took effect on 1 December
2022 for a period of three years. In addition to Members re-
appointed, there were also new appointment in this term with
Members drawn from the PM industry, different professional
areas and community service levels who possess in-depth
knowledge and understanding of the PM industry as well as
the social and economic development of Hong Kong. | am
sure their wealth of expertise and experience will continue to
drive the PMSA to embark on its statutory duties for promoting
healthy and sustainable development of the industry.

As of 31 March 2023, the PMSA had issued more than 11,800
PMP licences and over 430 PMC licences. In addition, a
series of complementary measures related to the PM industry
licensing regime had been successfully implemented. These
include formulating a total of 14 Codes of Conduct and
Best Practice Guides in respect of various areas to provide
appropriate and practical guidance for the industry to carry out
PM work; and launching the CPD Scheme which set criteria
and requirement for licensed PMPs’ participation in CPD
activities, encouraging them to acquire new knowledge and
skills through the organisation of various CPD seminars and
activities so that the PM profession could raise its standard
and advance with times.



BEBE2022F B EZF20190BMBET R
FRREBEHTE  RITSEBRIEL
ESHIGYEABARSITORERK - T
YEEE W RIBIE NN - S B B 202256F2 A H
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Hong Kong was under the continuing threat of the fifth wave
of the COVID-19 epidemic in 2022. Frontline PM workers
implementing various anti-epidemic work were put under
significant health risk and had to cope with overwhelming work
pressure. The PMSA was commissioned again in February
2022 by the HAD to implement the Anti-epidemic Support
Scheme under the Government’s sixth round of the Anti-
epidemic Fund, providing financial support to frontline PM
workers performing security and environmental hygiene related
duties in eligible properties. The PMSA had ultimately granted
nearly $1.8 billion in subsidies under the Scheme, benefitting
almost 190,000 frontline PM workers in recognition of their
active participation in anti-epidemic work. | wish to express
our deep appreciation to all the PMCs and OOs which actively
applied for subsidy for their PM workers and other frontline
PM workers employed by premises within their properties,
and to all frontline PM workers who remained steadfast and
were fully committed to their duties during the epidemic and
made significant contribution to the anti-epidemic work for the
community.

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority
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Chairperson’s Message

BEMERH A
TETE  MEEEEHE R = FBE

BT TRFFRE (2202347 HA31H
TEE)  cBEBYWEEEBENE AR
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BRIER « g ZFRINDE P IR R &2
JEEMEHIE - BT OEBHEBHEAEE
EERBEHOME RRIFNYME AERIER
ZEERRERBHEERENKIE

MEEBEEER
2022-23 FEFEHE

Embracing the New Era for Property

Management

Time flies. Less than half a year remain for the three-year
transitional period under the PM industry licensing regime (up
to 31 July 2023). The PM industry of Hong Kong is moving
closer towards the new era whereby PMCs and relevant PMPs
are all required to be licensed. We look forward to PMCs
and PMPs dedicated to providing PM services of enhanced
quality and professionalism in future and achieving the ultimate
goal to create a better place to live and work for members
of the public. The PM licensing regime has an active role to
play in promoting the development of the PM industry, and
the community has come to recognise and support the PM
licensing regime gradually. Many organisations have now
stipulated PMCs and PMPs holding licence issued by the
PMSA as requirement for consideration of engagement or
professional recognition.




RERK  BEEREBEMTHENSEE
HOHESME LR REBEREEERRA
Mo ARNBERIBEE T SYEXE
TERTIEFREE - Z—7HE - AR E#EH
BEMHA=FHNYERRKEEN2023F
BARKEERER EERNTERBETE
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B BARBYE XEFMMRRTEK
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MEMER - SMRAREHEEEER
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BEIXREL ARMES - KFHL
TE

Looking ahead, the PMSA will continue to drive PMCs and
relevant PMPs to apply for licence before the end of the
transitional period and work in full swing to process the
licence applications so as to ensure a smooth transition of
the operation of the PM industry. On the other hand, as the
first batch of PM licences issued with validity period of three
years will expire from August 2023 onwards, the PMSA will
also start to prepare and process licence renewal for PMCs
and PMPs. Furthermore, the PMSA will continue to formulate
Codes of Conduct in respect of various PM functions to
promote integrity in the PM industry, and will encourage PMP
licensees to participate in CPD activities/courses organised
or recognised by the PMSA under the CPD Scheme to raise
their professional capabilities and standard. Upon the ending
of the transitional period, the PMSA will strengthen promotion
about the service indicators of the PM profession in order to
enhance the public’s awareness and understanding of the
industry, thereby raising the professional status and image of
the industry.

“Even if a destination is near, if you do not go you will not get
there”. As the statutory regulatory body of the PM industry, our
work is an important and arduous mission for the future. “Keep
going and a bright future waits”. The PMSA will, as it has
always been, continue to strive and collaborate with various
stakeholders of the PM industry to raise the professional
status and service standard of the industry in Hong Kong and
build a brighter future for the industry through “Regulating by
Licensing”, “Setting Professional Standard” and “Encouraging
Continuing Professional Development”. Let's embrace
together the coming new era for PM whereby members of
the public would receive PM services of enhanced quality and
professionalism, and we enjoy living and working in our places.

Dr James WONG, BBS, JP
Chairperson

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority
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RIEFE BB [RERE ] [H
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RERFEKF  BARERURE
HRETREEMR -

The PMSA continued during the year to
strive to implement the licensing regime
through the three-pronged approach
of “Regulating by Licensing”, “Setting
Professional Standard” and “Encouraging
Continuing Professional Development”, and
collaborating with different Government
departments, public bodies and industry
organisations in order to galvanise efforts
in enhancing the professional status and
service standard of the PM industry in Hong
Kong and laying a solid foundation for the
sustainable development of the industry in

the coming future.

LI
B,

Alan SIU Yu-bun

Chief Executive Officer

‘ Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority 15~
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MEEBEEER
2022-23 FEFEHE

The PM industry licensing regime has entered into its second
year since its implementation from August 2020. During the
year of 2022-23, the PMSA continued to strive to implement
the licensing regime through the three-pronged approach of
“Regulating by Licensing”, “Setting Professional Standard”
and “Encouraging Continuing Professional Development”, and
collaborating with different Government departments, public
bodies and industry organisations in order to galvanise efforts
in enhancing the professional status and service standard of
the PM industry in Hong Kong and laying a solid foundation
for the sustainable development of the industry in the coming
future.

Regulating by Licensing

The transitional period of the PM industry licensing regime has
entered the countdown phase. To assist PMCs to apply for
licence soonest possible within the transitional period so as to
obviate such PMCs from not being able to continue to provide
PM services after the transitional period in accordance with
the law, the PMSA had launched within the year the Licence
Application Appointment Booking Scheme for PMCs to make
appointment to submit licence application orderly through the
PMC licence application hotline, in addition to the deployment
of dedicated licensing officers since last year to provide
individual PMCs with tailor-made licensing services.

The PMSA had also formed a task force to provide
dedicated licensing services to PMCs which had already
submitted licence applications. The task force proactively
visited individual PMCs and helped them on site to prepare
the documents and information required for their licence
application so that the licensing process could be completed
soonest possible and the PMCs concerned could obtain
licence successfully.

In addition, in order to facilitate provisional licence holders
to apply for formal PMP licence soonest possible upon their
completion of the PMSA Specified Course, the PMSA had
further streamlined the application process by accepting other
proof of completion of Specified Course in addition to the
graduation certificate. In other words, once provisional PMP
licence holders have completed the Specified Course, they do
not need to wait for the graduation certificate to be issued by
the educational institute concerned and can apply for formal
licence immediately by submitting other course completion
proof.
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A series of strategic publicity and promotional work had been
carried out, including the broadcasting on local television
and radio stations of the announcement in the public interest
with appeal to PM service users and property owners for
encouraging PMCs serving their properties to apply for licence
soonest possible. As of 31 March 2023, over 600 PMCs had
submitted licence application to the PMSA, of which over 430
had successfully been licensed. The PMSA had also issued
over 11,800 PMP licences whereby formal licences account for
68% and provisional licences account for 32%.

Setting Professional Standard

To tie in with the implementation of the licensing regime,
the PMSA had continued this year to formulate Codes of
Conduct and relevant Best Practice Guides in accordance
with the Property Management Services Ordinance (Cap. 626)
(PMSO) on various aspects of PM work in order to establish
an objective set of professional standard for the provision of
PM services. The PMSA had gazetted a total of four Codes of
Conduct and published relevant Best Practice Guides within
the year, including “Carrying out Procurement for Clients and
Prevention of Bid-rigging”, “Handling Emergencies”, “Handling
Scaffolding Works” and “Handling Suspended Working
Platform Works”. The Best Practice Guide on “Protection of
Personal Data” issued by the PMSA earlier had also been
reviewed and revised in response to the new edition of
“Protection of Personal Data Privacy — Guidance for Property
Management Sector” issued by the Office of the Privacy

Commissioner for Personal Data, Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority
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Encouraging Continuing Professional

Development

Since the roll-out of the CPD Scheme in early 2022 for the PM
industry to participate on voluntary basis, the PMSA organised
five CPD seminars last year which were attended by around
2,000 members of the PM industry in total in collaboration with
various Government departments, public bodies and industry
organisations. In addition, the PMSA produced short video
based on the seminar recordings for distribution to all PMCs
and licensed PMPs as well as educational institutions providing
PM courses for use as teaching resources. The PMSA also
launched the CPD Scheme e-Recording System during the
year to facilitate licensees to access and manage their CPD
activity/course participation record.

In the first rollout year of the CPD Scheme, over 510 PMP
licensees had met the CPD hour requirement recommended
for the year and were awarded Certificates of Recognition by
the PMSA.

Providing Anti-epidemic Support

In 2022, upon commissioning by the HAD once again to
implement the Anti-epidemic Support Scheme under the sixth
round of the Anti-epidemic Fund, the PMSA had immediately
set up a dedicated team for vetting the applications.

The Anti-epidemic Support Scheme was launched and
began accepting applications as from 28 February 2022. The
enhanced arrangement was eventually rolled out on 29 April
and after two extensions, the deadline for application was
subsequently extended to 30 June 2022.

The PMSA processed over 18,100 applications under the
Scheme and nearly $1.8 billion in subsidies were granted to
successful applicants benefitting almost 190,000 frontline
PM workers who provided security or environmental hygiene
related services in around 40,000 building blocks.
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Under the enhanced arrangement of the Scheme, the PMSA
carried out coordination work to encourage PMCs, DMC
managers and OOs to apply for subsidy on behalf of PM
workers engaged by premises in their properties as well as
those employed by cleansing and security contractors or
their subcontractors. These cases covered premises such as
supermarkets, banks, chain stores, etc., or those involving
a change in PMC or termination of employment of eligible
workers who had provided services during the subsidised
period, and were successfully resolved by the PMSA, and the
frontline workers concerned were able to successfully apply for
subsidy.

The three-year epidemic has brought unprecedented
challenges to the PM industry. As the epidemic situation has
stabilised, anti-epidemic measures have been gradually relaxed
and normal travel between Hong Kong and the Mainland would
soon resume progressively, and people’s livelihood would
eventually return to normal. | have full confidence that the PM
industry will, as it has always been, continue to contribute
significantly as Hong Kong moves steadily forward along the
path to normalcy, and will strive to seek new opportunities and
take on new challenges for the provision of PM services of
enhanced quality under the post-pandemic new normalcy.

Finally, | would wish to express my heartfelt appreciation to the
PMSA Chairperson and all Members, the HAD, staff members
of the PMSA Executive Office and all industry stakeholders
for their support to the work of the PMSA. | look forward
enthusiastically to a smooth transition of the Hong Kong
PM industry under the licensing regime which will embrace
the new era of PM and move towards enhanced quality and
professionalism through encompassing the core values of the
industry i.e. “Quality”, “Integrity” and “Advancement”.
Alan SIU

Chief Executive Officer
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PMSA'’s Functions

PMSA'’s Functions

PMSA is the statutory body established under the PMSO,
and is tasked to regulate the provision of PM services by
companies and practitioners in Hong Kong, and to promote
the professional development of the industry. As the statutory
regulatory body for the industry, the PMSA encourages
and assists the PM industry and its practitioners to strive
for enhancement in quality and professionalism through
formulating and implementing a licensing regime and other
complementary measures which tie in with the situation in
Hong Kong, with a view to providing quality PM services to the
community.

The PMSA is committed to adopting a high standard of
corporate governance in carrying out its work so as to meet
the expectations of the public and its stakeholders. It works
in accordance with the PMSO which sets out the regulatory
provisions on its operation, and endeavours to enhance
the effectiveness of its governance by adopting appropriate
principles, including the adoption of various monitoring
mechanisms, codes of conduct and corporate governance
arrangements applicable to public bodies.

The PMSA executes the functions below as stipulated in
the PMSO. It oversees the work of its Executive Office and
approves all major decisions.

o To regulate and control the provision of PM services by
the licensing of PMCs and PMPs;

o To promote the integrity, competence and professionalism
of the profession of PM services; and

To maintain and enhance the status of the profession of
PM services.
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Members of the PMSA

Members of the PMSA are appointed by the Chief Executive of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in accordance
with the PMSO. The second term ended on 30 November
2022. The third term ran from 1 December 2022 for a period
of three years. There are currently 20 members, including the
Chairperson and the Vice-chairperson. Members of the PMSA,
according to the sectors they belong to, are divided into the
following three categories:

o Category |

Individuals who are engaged in property management
services.

o Category |l

Individuals, not being Category | persons, who, because
of their experience in property management, general
administration or consumer affairs, appear to the Chief
Executive to have knowledge of property management
services.

o Category I

Individuals, not being Category | or Category Il persons,
who appear to the Chief Executive to be suitable to be
appointed as Members of the PMSA.

Members of the PMSA come from different backgrounds
with diverse expertise and are experienced in community
service. They have provided the PMSA with independent
and objective advice on various aspects of its operation.
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Membership of the PMSA (From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
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Chairperson
Dr James WONG Kong-tin, BBS, JP
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HEXHR 2EBHE - ATHT

Vice-chairperson
Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
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Members

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP

Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP
Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC
Mr CHO Wui-hung, MH

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Miss Renee HO Hang-yin

Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

Mr Manley LAU Man-kit

Mr Spencer LAW

Mr Stephen POON Kin-leung

Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

Ms Careen WONG Hau-yan

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH
Mr YIU Kwok-wai, MH

Mr Jeremy YOUNG Chit-on
Director of Housing or her representative

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Membership of the PMSA (From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
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=TI KRIEL  MEHESE  KFEHT
Dr James WONG Kong-tin, BBS, JP

ENHE  KEBE - KFHtL
Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

BIESZ L KMt
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP

FREDKIEL - BEHEE - KFEHT
Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP
R AREE R ANERD

Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC

CERSEE - REBHE
Mr CHO Wui-hung, MH
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11

FERELIE  RERE - KFEL
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

] A2+
Miss Renee HO Hang-yin

BELRER - KEBHE
Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

BIONEE
Mr Manley LAU Man-kit

BEEELE
Mr Spencer LAW

12

13

14

15

16

RBEEE - KNP+
(REEBREERRR)
Mr Chris NG Hung-fai, JP
(Representative of Director
of Home Affairs)

EERSEE
Mr Stephen POON Kin-leung

BRI, KEHE
Mr Ilvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

\mIOMEZ+
Ms Careen WONG Hau-yan

\mEMZ L
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

17

18

19

20

EERKE
Members of the PMSA

BTREL  HRHES  KEBHE
Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH

BEIESE L - REBE
Mr YIU Kwok-wai, MH

5 2
Mr Jeremy YOUNG Chit-on

HIRIBEE - KL
(FEEERRE)

Mr Ricky YEUNG Yiu-fai, JP
(Representative of Director
of Housing)
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Membership of the PMSA (From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)

X & Chairperson

EIREL azpes . cret
Dr James WONG Kong-tin, BBS, JP
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Legal Counsel, Arbitrator, Mediator
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e Chairman, The Liquor Licensing Board

* Member, The Citizens Advisory Committee on Community
Relations of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption

e Member, The Advisory Committee on Post-service
Employment of Civil Servants

e Member, The Correctional Services Department
Complaints Appeal Board

e Vice-chairman, Greater China Legal Affairs Committee, The
Law Society of Hong Kong

e Director, Agency for Volunteer Service
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BIEFE Vice-chairperson

HEXHR gens 76+

Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

BERBIRBREENEHESZHE
Professor, Department of Building and Real Estate,
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
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* Member, Supervisory Board and the Nominating
Committee, Hong Kong Housing Society

* Member, Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts,
Securities and Futures Commission

e Member, Estate Agents Authority and its Strategic
Development and Management Committee

e Chairman, Practice and Examination Committee, Estate
Agents Authority

e Member, Subsidised Housing Committee, Hong Kong
Housing Authority

* Member, Panel of Advisors, Land Sharing Pilot Scheme

e Member, Task Force for the Study on Tenancy Control of
Subdivided Units
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Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP
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Director
. )\i%$f%ﬁi LEEME B

%
. ﬂﬂzl @?%
e HETEEZMBES
e MABHEASRESENRNEEGHNE
o BBERIEIEEFAE

E=11l3
0

e Deputy Commissioner, IDYL Youth

Corps, Immigration Department

* Member, Hong Kong Housing Authority

e Member, Post-Release Supervision

Board

* Member, Social Workers Registration

Board

e Member, Advisory Committee on

Admission of Quality Migrants and

Professionals

e Director and Treasurer, Hong Kong

Repertory Theatre

BRAEBREL  pumes  Avat
Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP

T AR

Chief Executive Officer

e BREZBEHAELE (BE U2 - #W
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e BERRRRBKE

o BUEBRFLFEE

e Ex-officio member, Election Committee
(Architectural, Surveying, Planning and
Landscape Subsector)

* Member, Hong Kong Housing Authority
and Chairman of its Building Committee

e Vice-chairman, Hong Kong Council on
Smoking and Health

e Member, Elderly Commission

* Member, Occupation Safety and Health
Council

e Non-official member, Hong Kong
Correctional Services Department

Complaints Appeal Board

ok RAEE IR KA

Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC

BIRAER
Senior Counsel
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e Deputy High Court Judge

e Vice-chairman, Municipal Services
Appeal Board

e Member, Estate Agents Authority
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Mr CHO Wui-hung, MH

BEB S MEEE

District Councillor/Property Director
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Member, Kowloon City District Council
Member, The sixth Election Committee of the
HKSAR (Grassroots associations)

Member, The 15" Committee of Shunde
District, Foshan City, CPPCC

Chairman, The Kowloon Central Branch of the
BPA

Member, District Fight Crime Committee
(Kowloon City District)

Member, The 111 Kowloon City District
Advisory Committee of the Urban Renewal
Authority

Member, Oi Man Estate Estate Advisory
Management Committee, Housing Department
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Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

It RERGRAFREEE — TERAE BEYLER)
Director-Chairman office (Construction Culture
Implementation),

New World Construction Company Limited
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Member, Steering Committee on Enhancing OSH of Construction and
Property Management Industries, Occupational Safety and Health
Council

Member, Construction Industry Training Board

Member, Sub-committee on Trade Testing, Construction Industry
Training Board

Member, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Appeal Board
Member, Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions Occupational Safety
and Health Association

Director, Lok Kwan Social Service

Member, Guangzhou Municipality Political Consultative Conference
President, Hong Kong Construction Industry Registered Specialist

Trade Union Federation
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Miss Renee HO Hang-yin

NEABEIME
Public Policy Analyst
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Member, Civil Service Training Advisory Board
Member, Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling
Scheme Appeal Board Panel
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Members of the PMSA
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Director
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e Past President, The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

* Member, The Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent
Cemeteries Cum Chairman, Works and Development
Committee

e |ay Member, Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel of Judiciary

e Member, Property Management Industry Training Advisory
Committee

* Member, Hong Kong Housing Society

e Convenor, Panel Advisors on Building Management Disputes,
Home Affairs Department

e External Examiner, Bachelor of Science (Honours) in Surveying,

Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong
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Mr Manley LAU Man-Kkit

FTREFIESFZELXFE
New People’s Party Youth
Committee Chairman
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Member, Tai Po North Area Committee
Member, CPPCC Guangzhou Panyu
Committee

Centre Committee Member, New
People’s Party

Vice Chairman, Tai Po Youths
Association

Member, Environmental Campaign
Committee

Chairman, New Age Young Association
Vice Chairman, Hong Kong New Media
Professional Association

Member, Hubei Youth Federation
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Mr Spencer LAW

MEREEEIR
Property and Asset Management

THER BB RRFEMEEE RREZR
ELENETE
EEREFBETENETERRETREE
RIMNER

BRYFE RGBT BIEE
EEHNETRMESEER

External Consultant, Property
Management and Security Services for
FTU Employment Development Service
External Consultant, Property
Management and Security Services
for Hong Kong Construction Industry
Employees General Union

Invited Member, Hong Kong Property
Services Alliance

Member, Hong Kong Institute of Real

Estate Administrators

BERTE

Mr Stephen POON Kin-leung

MRETE

Property Management

RENEERRERBEBEEZREEERE
BRMERBRARBE LR

Member, Food Wise Hong Kong
Steering Committee, Environment and
Ecology Bureau

Chairman, Hong Kong Association of

Property Services Agents
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Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

HIBEFEEERARBIZEFAKLE
Deputy Managing Director,
Chevalier International Holdings
Limited
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Ms Careen WONG Hau-yan

{2 EM

Solicitor
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Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan
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Solicitor
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e Chairman, Transport Tribunal (on

Member, Governing Committee,
and Immediate Past Chairman and
Councillor, General Insurance Council,
The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
Member, Election Committee

Past President, The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries)

Past President and Council Member,
The Hong Kong Association of Property

Management Companies

Council Member, The Law Society of
Hong Kong

Chairperson, Standing Committee on
Standards and Development, The Law
Society of Hong Kong

Member, PIS Claims Committee of the
Hong Kong Solicitors Indemnity Fund
Limited

Member, Ethics Committee of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

Lay Assessor, The Medical Council of
Hong Kong

Property Management Services Authority

rotation basis)

Member, Standing Committee on
Compliance, The Law Society of Hong
Kong

Member, Consents Committee, The Law
Society of Hong Kong

Member, Disciplinary Tribunal Panel,
The Association of China-Appointed
Attesting Officers Limited

Member, Betting and Lotteries

Commission
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Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH

SRS A @
Community Officer Yaumatei
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President, Yau Tsim Mong Federation of
Association

Deputy Director General, Kowloon
Federation of Association

Chairperson, DAB Yau Tsim Mong
Branch

Executive Vice President, Hong Kong
Federation of Dongguan Associations
School Supervisor, Yaumati Kaifong
Association School

Member, The Committee on the
Promotion of Racial Harmony, Home

Affairs Department
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Mr YIU Kwok-wai, MH

MERTE®TIEE
Community and Trade Union
Worker

s BFUREZEELEB
o THARBMIEITE
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e Member, Youth Development
Commission

* Member, District Fight Crime Committee

(Yuen Long District)

BEZREE

Mr Jeremy YOUNG Chit-on

REE
District Councillor

o FAREES
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e MIMRBEREZE
s BEREFRREE

e Central and Western District District

Councillor

* Non-official Member,
Development Commission

* Non-official Member,
Crime Committee (Central and Western
District)

* Non-official Member, Family Council

¢ Non-official Member, Committee on Taxi

Service Quality
e Member,

Committee

Youth

District Fight

Liberal Party Central
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FRXFLL sumes cvmt
Miss WONG Tin-yu, Agnes, GBS, JP

FERFEWMER FEEER
Permanent Secretary for Housing / Director of

Housing

RS Z L Avet

Mrs Alice CHEUNG CHIU Hoi-yue, JP

RBEBREZR

Director of Home Affairs
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Membership of the PMSA (From 1 December 2019 to 30 November 2022)
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Chairperson
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP
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Vice-Chairperson
Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
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Members

Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

Hon Scott LEUNG Man-kwong, MH
Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee

Mr Ivan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

Mr Stanley Lanny TAM, MH

Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, GBS, JP
Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP
Director of Housing or her representative

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Committees

The PMSA has established five Committees to assist in
handling its heavy work schedule and discharging its functions.
Each Committee may set up dedicated Working Group(s)
to address specific issues. Chairpersons of Committees
and Convenors of the Working Groups are Members of the
PMSA. The Committees and their Working Groups conducted
meetings during the year to draw up work plan for the
functions of the PMSA, and to roll out various programmes in
accordance with their scheduled work plan.

Development
x’ Committee
an
€.
ax
L
L E EREES
& ™ Licensing

Committee

BEXNEXZEES

Flnance and Strateglc

Practice and
Assessment
Committee
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Disciplinary Committee

Major Functions:

This Committee is primarily responsible for handling disciplinary
matters referred to under the PMSO. It will conduct such
hearings as it may think fit, exercise such powers and make
such orders as it considers appropriate. It will also draw up
guidelines and procedures to ensure consistency and fairness
in handling disciplinary cases, and refer cases of malpractice
or complaints to other committees for formulation or revision
of policies, Codes of Conduct or other guidelines.

(From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
Chairperson: Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan
Members: Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP

Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin

Mr CHO Woui-hung, MH

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Mr Stephen POON Kin-leung

Mr Ilvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

Ms Careen WONG Hau-yan

Mr YIU Kwok-wai, MH

Mr Jeremy YOUNG Chit-on

Director of Home Affairs or her representative

(Term of office ended on 30 November 2022)
Chairperson: Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan
Members: Hon Scott LEUNG Man-kwong, MH
Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH
Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee
Mr Ilvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH
Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming,GBS, JP
Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP
Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Committees

Finance and Strategic Development Committee

Major Functions:

This Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the PMSA on strategic issues of long term significance
and budgetary matters. It is also responsible for assisting
the PMSA to oversee human resources management and to
review and approve establishment structure, re-organisation,
manpower planning and development of human resources
policies and procedures.

(From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
Chairperson: Dr James WONG Kong-tin, BBS, JP
Members: Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP

Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP

Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin

Mr CHO Woui-hung, MH

Mr Manley LAU Man-kit

Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

Mr YIU Kwok-wai, MH

Mr Jeremy YOUNG Chit-on

Director of Home Affairs or her representative

(Term of office ended on 30 November 2022)
Chairperson: Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP
Members: Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

Ms Wendy NG Wan-yee

Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH

Mr Stanley TAM Lanny, MH

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, GBS, JP

Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Licensing Committee

Major Functions:

This Committee is tasked to exercise and execute functions
and powers of the PMSA in respect of provisions on the
licensing of PMCs and PMPs under the PMSO. It helps in
designing and reviewing application forms, licences, PMP
card, the register and other relevant licence documents.
Furthermore, it will also review licensing criteria, application
and licence fees, as well as formulate and review policies
relevant to licensing matters, and make recommendations to
the PMSA thereon.

(From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
Chairperson: Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
Members: Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau, SBS, JP

Mr Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin

Mr CHO Woui-hung, MH

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Mr Manley LAU Man-kit

Mr Stephen POON Kin-leung

Ms Careen WONG Hau-yan

Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH

Director of Home Affairs or her representative

(Term of office ended on 30 November 2022)
Chairperson: Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH
Members: Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP

Mr YIP Hing-kwok, BBS, MH, JP

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Committees

Practice and Assessment Committee

Major Functions:

This Committee is responsible for assisting the PMSA to draw
up and review Codes of Conduct and Best Practice Guides
governing the conduct and practice of PMCs and PMPs
respectively. Where a qualifying assessment is required, the
Committee will assist the PMSA to set the parameters of and
administer the qualifying assessment.

(From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
Chairperson: Mr lvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH
Members: Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

Miss Renee HO Hang-yin

Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

Mr Stephen POON Kin-leung

Ms Careen WONG Hau-yan

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH

Mr Jeremy YOUNG Chit-on

Director of Housing or her representative

Director of Home Affairs or her representative

(Term of office ended on 30 November 2022)
Chairperson: Mr Ilvan TAM Kwok-wing, MH
Members: Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH
Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH
Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan
Dr Mickey YAN Wai-kiu, MH, JP
Director of Housing or her representative
Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Professional Development Committee

Major Functions:

In order to enhance professionalism of the PM industry,
this Committee plays an important role in liaising with the
industry to explore ways to improve practice standard and
service quality. It will also liaise with local tertiary institutions in
providing training to practitioners and is responsible for driving
continuing professional development work.

(From 1 December 2022 to 30 November 2025)
Chairperson: Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
Members: Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu, MH, JP

Miss Renee HO Hang-yin

Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

Mr Spencer LAW

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH

Mr YIU Kwok-wai, MH

Director of Housing or her representative

Director of Home Affairs or her representative

(Term of office ended on 30 November 2022)
Chairperson: Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP
Members: Hon CHAN Han-pan, BBS, JP

Dr Jason CHAN Kai-yue, MH, JP

Sr Dick KWOK Ngok-chung, MH

Hon Scott LEUNG Man-kwong, MH

Mr Paul NG Kwong-ming, MH

Mr Justin WONG Fai-sing, MH

Ms Annie WONG Pak-yan

Director of Housing or her representative

Director of Home Affairs or her representative
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Executive Office

Executive Office

The PMSA Executive Office (EO) assists and supports the
PMSA in discharging its PM regulatory duties, promoting
industry edges, boosting the development of professionalism
in the industry as well as performing day-to-day work of
various aspects. It is led by the Chief Executive Officer,
who is underpinned by two General Managers responsible
for the “Regulatory” and “Operation and Service” branches
respectively. The Complaints and Enforcement Division,
Legal Affairs Division, Licensing Division, and Regulatory
and Disciplinary Division are under the “Regulatory” branch;
while the Administration Division (responsible for the PMSA
Secretariat, Human Resources, Finance, and Administration
functions), the Corporate Services Division (responsible for
Corporate Communications and Information Technology
functions), and the Professional Development Division are
under the “Operation and Service” branch. The PMSA EO had
36 regular staff members during the year.

professional
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BUWaE 1THAR
Mr Alan SIU Chief Executive Officer

WERRLL BKE(REFEH)
Ms Diana PANG General Manager
(Regulatory)

EElRaLt #KE (LERRY)
Ms Connie YIP General Manager
(Operation and Service)

BRELLE EEEM
Ms Eva LAU Legal Counsel

2RBLE SRLE (BR)
Ms Winnie LAU Senior Manager
(Licensing)

FEORT SREE(TREERER)
Ms Susan LEE Senior Manager
(Administration and Resources
Management)

EEEE

Management Team

10

TTBURS=E

Executive Office

HLERE SRLE (EARR)
Mr SL TANG Senior Manager
(Information Technology)

Attt g k4t L1 (RF LT
Mr Stephen HO Manager (Complaints
and Enforcement)

EERAE KB (ER)
Mr Howard LUK Manager (Licensing)

HRELZL £ (EXER)
Ms Noel TANG Manager (Professional
Development)
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Review of the Year

Review of the Year

Looking back on 2022-23, the PM industry licensing regime
has already been implemented for two years, and the three-
year transitional period has entered into the countdown stage
(ending on 31 July 2023), marking that the PM industry in
Hong Kong is about to reach a new milestone and to move
forward with enhancement in quality and professionalism. The
PMSA adopts the “three-pronged approach” of regulating
by licensing, setting professional standard and encouraging
continuing professional development to enhance the status
and professional level of the PM industry. The PMSA also
collaborates with various Government departments, public
bodies and industry organisations to drive the initiatives with
concerted efforts.

HESREE

Setting Professional Standard
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Regulating by Licensing

Since the implementation of the PM industry licensing regime
on 1 August 2020, as of 31 March 2023, the PMSA had
cumulatively received nearly 14,000 PMP and PMC licence
applications and issued over 12,200 licences.

HERRERERE (20208 A1 HE2023%3H831H)
Number of licence applications (1 August 2020 to 31 March 2023)

YE NRRIRERES

PMP licence applications:

L\l\>

s 13,300

WERFIEREE -
8 \,& PMC licence applications:

e 600

BHERREE (20208 A1 HE2023F3H311)
Number of licences issued (1 August 2020 to 31 March 2023)

FHYE AR -

O
@ PMP licences issued:
o
Over 11 800

o IEFNHEER : 38 0001
o FRRFHRER : #B383,800

%)% 'dj %eﬁ /N jhlga .
o PMC licences issued:
Vx

o 430

e formal licences: nearly 8,000
* provisional licences: over 3,800
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To encourage and support PMCs and related PMPs to apply
for licence soonest possible, the PMSA had made appropriate
optimisation to relevant licensing policies and application
procedures in accordance with the practical situation. The
PMSA had also continued to communicate with stakeholders
through various means and channels to appeal and explain to
them the urgency and importance of applying for licence.
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Regulating by Licensing

Optimising Policies and Services

PMP licence

Adding specified academic qualification in PM

Under the PM industry licensing regime, practitioners
have to meet the criteria for holding a PMP licence
(including PM work experience and having recognised
academic qualification). The PM work experience required
would be less for those who possess specified academic
qualification recognised by the PMSA.

Since the Qualifications Framework launched the pilot
project on development of Vocational Qualifications
Pathway (VQP) for the PM industry in 2016, the
progression pathway for various aspects of PM work
had been charted and the competency requirement
of specific job roles had been defined to enhance the
training standard of the industry and facilitate manpower
development. The work aspects and job roles of PM
had been revised in the review of the VQP pilot project
conducted by the Education Bureau in 2021 and the
competency requirement of PM manager and supervisor
had also been updated. The PMSA had revised the
assessment criteria for its specified academic qualification
in accordance with the revision of the VQP and provided
reference to educational institutions offering specified
academic qualification courses on PM.

The PMSA continued to recognise academic qualifications
during the year according to the adopted assessment
criteria, including one academic qualification applicable
to PMP (Tier 1) licence and two academic qualifications
applicable to PMP (Tier 2) licence. This had increased
the number of PMSA specified academic qualifications
relating to PM to a total of 61, enabling more PM
practitioners who meet the relevant academic qualification
criteria to apply for PMP licence.
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Optimising criteria for holding provisional PMP licence

To facilitate PM practitioners who have been working
in the industry and have gained considerable years of
work experience to be licensed smoothly, the PMSA
optimised the criteria for holding provisional PMP licence
in September 2022. In addition to counting the specified
PM work experience up to 1 August 2020 to meet the
requirement, it is also acceptable to count the specified
PM work experience up to the date of application
submission so that more PM practitioners can obtain
provisional licence and continue to provide PM services to
the public, and the valuable human asset of the industry
can be retained.

Streamlining formal licence application procedures for
provisional PMP licence holders

To facilitate holders of provisional licence to obtain formal
PMP licence soonest possible, the PMSA had simplified
the application arrangements further during the year.
From February 2023 onwards, provisional licence holders
do not need to wait for the graduation certificate to be
awarded by the relevant educational institution upon their
completion of the Specified Course but can immediately
apply for formal licence by providing other proof of
successful course completion.
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Regulating by Licensing

PMC licence

The vetting procedures of PMC licence application are
generally more detailed. The PMSA has to verify the number
of flats in each property managed by the PMC in accordance
with the relevant deed of mutual covenant and confirm that
sufficient PMP licence holders are engaged in order to meet
the minimum manning ratio licensing criteria, and hence will
need a longer period of time to complete the verification work
required. In case a large number of PMCs choose to submit
licence applications within a short time frame before the end
of the transitional period, the PMSA might not be able to deal
with all the applications before the end of the transitional
period due to the heavy workload. Therefore, the PMSA had
actively appealed to PMCs required to be licensed for making
licence applications soonest possible within the transitional
period.
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Rolling out the PMC Licence Application Appointment
Booking Scheme

To ensure that PMC licence applications and related
licensing work could be orderly staggered for processing,
the PMSA launched in August 2022 the Licence
Application Appointment Booking Scheme and set up
the PMC licence application hotline for PMCs to reserve
suitable timeslot within the period of September 2022 to
May 2023 for submitting licence application so that PMCs
would be able to comply with the law and be licensed
before the end of the transitional period and continue to
provide PM services seamlessly afterwards.

Forming a Task Force to Visit PMCs and Provide
Assistance in Licence Application

Furthermore, to ensure PMCs which have already
submitted licence application and have met all criteria
could be licensed smoothly soonest possible before the
end of the transitional period, the PMSA had formed a
task force in February 2023 to proactively visit these
PMCs and assist them in preparing the documents
and information required for their licence application so
that the licensing process would be completed soonest
possible and the PMCs concerned could successfully
obtain licences. As of 31 March 2023, the task force
had made over 60 trips and proactively visited nearly 70
PMCs.
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EESPEE Promoting Early Application for Licence
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Over the year, the PMSA held 35 briefing sessions on the
PM industry licensing regime and provided tailor-made
introduction and explanation to address the interests of
different stakeholders including the PM industry, OOs,
public bodies and Government departments. The PMSA
also proactively collaborated with the HAD and its district
offices to introduce the licensing regime to Liaison
Officers of the District Building Management Liaison
Teams, Community Organisers and representatives of
OOs and addressed their enquiries.
EERRFANRZEMEXERE The PMSA also arranged 10 licence application events
FEBTHL105KEERTE in the year for several PM industry professional bodies to
FEEREANEMBEIEIERER submit licence applications collectively so that the PMSA
e could deal with the applications more efficiently.
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Holding PM Pioneer Awards Ceremony

To commend over 100 PMCs in Hong Kong for taking
the lead to be licensed and became the “PM Pioneers”
of the industry, and to encourage PMCs which had yet
to be licensed to apply for licence soonest possible, the
PMSA held the PM Pioneer Awards Ceremony at the
2nd International Property Management & Procurement
Expo in late August 2022 to present awards to these
“PM Pioneers”. To strengthen public understanding of
PM services and raise the professional status of the
PM industry, the PMSA also invited the “PM Pioneers”
to participate in the production of a promotional video
whereby they gave interview on how obtaining licence
under the PM industry licensing regime could be a
business edge for them, and their vision for the future
development of the PM industry in Hong Kong.
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BERE
Regulating by Licensing

Publicity Initiatives Targeting PM Service Users/OQOs

In addition to making appeal through direct mailing to
OOs in Hong Kong, advising that they should verify
soonest possible as to whether the PMCs engaged/to be
engaged are licensed in order to avoid PM services from
being affected after the transitional period, the PMSA also
launched a series of television and radio announcements
themed “A New Milestone for Property Management
— Regulation Breeds Professionalism” in July 2022 to
remind members of the public that PMCs providing PM
services to their properties must hold valid licence in
accordance with the law from 1 August 2023 onwards
in order to continue to provide PM services seamlessly
after the transitional period of the PM industry licensing
regime.
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Formulating Codes of Conduct

The PMSA had issued during the year four Codes of Conduct
and relevant Best Practice Guides, including “Carrying out
Procurement for Clients and Prevention of Bid-rigging”,
“Handling Emergencies”, “Handling Scaffolding Works”, and
“Handling Suspended Working Platform Works”. The relevant
Best Practice Guide of the “Protection of Personal Data” Code
of Conduct issued by the PMSA earlier had also been updated
in response to the new edition of “Protection of Personal Data
Privacy — Guidance for Property Management Sector” issued
by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data,
Hong Kong. The electronic version of the above Codes and
Guides had been uploaded to the PMSA website for public
viewing.

Under the PMSO, a licensee does not incur legal liability only
because of contravening a provision of the Code of Conduct.
However, if the concerned provision of the Code of Conduct
is relevant to determining a matter that is an issue in legal
proceeding (including disciplinary hearing), the said Code
of Conduct is admissible in evidence in the proceedings,
and proof that the relevant licensee contravened or did not
contravene the relevant provision of the Code of Conduct may
be relied on as tending to establish or negate that matter.
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Carrying out
Procurement for Clients and
Prevention of Bid-rigging

Code of Conduct %

Handling

Code of Conduct

Emergencies
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Setting Professional Standard

The purpose of the PMSA to prepare Best Practice Guide with
respect to each Code of Conduct, is to enable licensees to
comply more effectively and professionally with the guidelines
set out in the Code of Conduct when carrying out their duties.
Failure to comply with the Best Practice Guide will not be
regarded as a disciplinary offence referred to in the PMSO,
but licensees are encouraged to use their best endeavours to
follow the guide.

In addition to regulating the industry, the Codes and Guides
formulated by the PMSA also offer members of the public who
demand for quality PM services a set of objective standard
drawn up based on extensive consultation, and the public
could be educated on what constitute reasonable and quality
PM services and the interaction with them would be enhanced,
achieving a win-win situation for both property users and
the PM industry. The PMSA will continue to issue Codes of
Conduct and Best Practice Guides in respect of different
areas of PM so as to enhance the professionalism of PMCs
and PMPs, and encourage the industry to provide quality PM
services to the community.

Handling Complaints and Enquiries

The PMSA has all along communicated with stakeholders
and the public through different means, including meeting,
telephone call and email, aiming to deal with opinion, enquiries
and complaints received in respect of PM services more
effectively.

Handling
Handling Suspended Working
Scaffolding Works Platform Works
1 ]

0
o%°® Code of Conduct o%®
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Complaint Cases

736

The PMSA will conduct investigation into complaints against
licensees alleged to have committed disciplinary offences
under the PMSO. If the subject of complaint is not a licensee,
while the PMSA may not conduct investigation under the
PMSO, it will strive to provide assistance to the complainant
concerning the case, including making enquiries with the
relevant PMC or PMP, relaying the concern to them and
encouraging them to follow up on the relevant matters and
enhance communication with their clients in order to address
concern or reach consensus so as to resolve the complaint.

The PMSA received and dealt with 736 complaints in the year
2022-23, and 328 of which involved licensees. The complaints
came mainly from property owners of residential properties.
They complained against the PMCs responsible for managing
their properties for not dealing with their complaints properly,
failure to post meeting minutes timely, inappropriate handling
of noise nuisance or water leakage, failure to handover
properly at the end of service appointment, mismanagement of
cleansing or security services, failure or delay in taking follow-
up actions about repair and maintenance works of common
facilities, as well as refusal or delay in providing relevant
financial records or documents, etc.

EERBEHENA
Within Jurisdiction

683
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*
Outside Jurisdiction 53
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* Relevant complaints include: property concerned does not have a deed of mutual covenant, OO
taking legal action against tenants, labour disputes between PMCs and its employees and disputes
relating to terms in deeds of mutual covenant, etc.
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Classification of complaints within jurisdiction of the PMSA
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General management services (e.g.
failure to follow up properly in respect
of complaints made by owners, failure
to handle noise nuisance properly,
failure to handle occupation of
common areas, failure to deal with
unauthorised building works, failure
to assist in convening or arranging
owners’ meetings, failure to handover
properly at the end of service
appointment, etc.)
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Management of property environment
(e.g. failure to collect refuse on
schedule, insufficient cleaning of
common area, no security guard on
duty, security guards’ failure to patrol
common areas of property according
to schedule, etc.)

Ry
Total

MEDHEE RERNEE (FlI2
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Repair, maintenance and improvement
(e.g. failure/delay in carrying out repair
or replacement of old/defective water
pipes or external wall, etc.)
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Finance and asset management (e.g.
budgeting and accounts not correct
or not clear enough, refusal or delay
in dealing with request for inspection
of financial records, etc.)

B
L3

ATYENRBER (FIREAMER
Ais RMFESH B ENHE)
Facility management (e.g. occupation

of common area of carpark or
property, etc.)
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Since a single complaint case may involve more than one category of complaint, the total number of complaints
in different categories is not equal to the total number of complaint cases.
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Disciplinary Hearing

The first disciplinary hearing of the PMSA was held in private
as requested by the respondent according to Section 25(4)
of the PMSO in March 2023. The hearing was conducted by
Disciplinary Committee Members including Ms Annie WONG
Pak-yan (Chairperson), Dr Johnnie CHAN Chi-kau and Mr
Jonathan CHANG Tien-yin, SC. The respondent did not attend
the hearing, and the PMSA received before the hearing a letter
from the respondent admitting to the allegations and brief
facts as put forth by the PMSA. Having discussed the case
and after deliberation, the Disciplinary Committee unanimously
ruled that the allegations made were substantiated, and in
accordance with the PMSO, ordered that the respondent’s
relevant licences be revoked.
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Collaboration with the ICAC to Raise Industry’s
Integrity Standard

PMCs and PMPs often have to carry out work for clients such
as collecting management fees, procuring goods and services
on behalf of clients, making various payment to suppliers, etc.
Therefore, it is crucial for PMCs and PMPs to maintain good
conduct and achieve a high degree of integrity.

To strengthen the capabilities and awareness of the PM
industry in preventing corruption and to foster a culture of
integrity, the PMSA and the ICAC had embarked on several
joint anti-corruption initiatives, including issuing the “Prevention
of Corruption” Code of Conduct and its relevant Best
Practice Guide for the PM industry, publishing the “Property
Management Corruption Prevention Red Flags” leaflet for
property users/owners as well as jointly organising a CPD
Seminar under the theme of “Excellence in PM services —
Integrity and Professionalism” in order to raise the professional
standard of the PM industry.
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Professional Development
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The PMSA continued to promote continuing professional
development and cultivate a learning culture among the PM
industry in the year 2022-23.

PMSA Specified Courses

The PMSA Specified Courses are set up to support the
implementation of the PM industry licensing regime. PMPs who
possess the specified work experience but do not have the
required academic and/or professional qualification for formal
PMP licence may apply for provisional licence first during the
transitional period of the licensing regime and attend the PMSA
Specified Courses. Upon completion of the PMSA Specified
Courses within the validity of the provisional licence, they may
apply for formal PMP licences without the academic and/or
professional qualification required.

The four appointed educational institutions to provide the
PMSA Specified Course, including Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education, Vocational Training Council, Li Ka Shing
School of Professional and Continuing Education, Hong Kong
Metropolitan University, School of Continuing and Professional
Education, City University of Hong Kong as well as School
of Professional Education and Executive Development, Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, had launched a total of 33
classes during the past year and provided over 1,100 places in
response to market demand.

Since the roll-out of the PMSA Specified Courses from
October 2020 and up to 31 March 2023, the four educational
institutions had provided altogether a total of 106 classes
in eight intakes for 3,400 provisional PMP licence holders,
enabling them to apply for formal PMP licences after
successful completion of study.
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Senior Property Manager Mr Tung TANG, who became a PMP
(Tier 1) licence holder after completion of the Specified Course
at the School of Continuing and Professional Education, City
University of Hong Kong:

“Specified Courses are like intensive courses for systematical
revision about the laws and regulations that | often come
across in PM work. Moreover, as tutors would analyse and
discuss with us court cases relating to PM in class, and
classmates would share the difficulties and challenges they
face in their daily work as well as solutions to resolve problems
effectively which are practical and relevant, | actually gained a
lot from the course. | would definitely recommend the Specified
Course to my fellow PM colleagues.”
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Property Manager Ms Natalie PANG, who became a PMP
(Tier 1) licence holder after completion of the Specified Course
at the Li Ka Shing School of Professional and Continuing
Education, Hong Kong Metropolitan University:

“The Specified Course has helped me to carry out day-to-
day PM work. For example, since | learnt the relationship and
relevance between the Building Management Ordinance and
the deed of mutual covenant in class, | now know how to
explain the provision involved clearly to OOs and help them
to understand the matter. Completing the course means that
| possess the professional qualification required to apply for
PMP licence, enabling me to gain a competitive edge in my
career and build my confidence. | can proudly tell everyone
that | am a professional PMP licensee.”
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Property Manager Mr Philip TANG, who became a PMP (Tier 1)
licence holder after completion of the Specified Course at the

School of Professional Education and Executive Development,
Hong Kong Polytechnic University:

“The Specified Course has equipped me with accounting
and financial management knowledge which is very useful
to my everyday work. What has been learnt from the tutor
in class can help PMPs to strengthen financial management
capability relating to property and as a result will help enhance
the confidence of property owners and residents in our PM
services. The course has also taught students conduct and
ethics expected for a PMP. Through exchanges with fellow
colleagues, | have also enhanced my understanding of the
industry and strengthened my problem-solving skills. From
PMC’s perspective, the company’s professional capabilities

and image would also be enhanced significantly if more staff
members hold PMP licence.”
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CPD Scheme

The PMSA launched the CPD Scheme in early 2022, setting
criteria and requirements for PMP licensees to participate
in CPD activities/courses. The Scheme encourages PMP
licensees to learn new knowledge and skills continuously
through participating in CPD activities/courses organised as
well as recognised by the PMSA in order to advance with
times and meet the PM work requirement and challenges.

Holders of PMP (Tier 1) and (Tier 2) licence are recommended
to participate respectively in a minimum of 12 hours and
6 hours of CPD activities/courses each year to meet the
requirement of the CPD Scheme. Licensees who are able
to attain the number of CPD hours recommended by the
PMSA and meet all the requirement will receive a certificate of
recognition from the PMSA.

Highlights of the first year of the CPD Scheme (from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022) rolled out on voluntary
participation basis are as follows:

A total of 137 CPD activities/courses organised by RPBs and
other organisations had been recognised under the Scheme,
which comprised 99% of the 138 applications received for
recognition.

The PMSA collaborated with various Government departments,
public bodies and industry organisations and organised four
CPD seminars successfully which were attended by over 1,600
members of the PM industry cumulatively. The PMSA also
edited 7 short themed videos from recorded footage of the
seminars for distribution to the four PMSA Specified Course
providers and to various other educational institutions offering
specified or equivalent qualification courses in order to provide
these institutions with diverse educational resources for
teaching PM-related courses.
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Encouraging Continuing Professional Development

To facilitate PMP licensees to plan and manage their CPD
record anytime, the PMSA launched the e-Recording System
in September 2022. PMP licensees may, either through the
PMSA website or the PMSA mobile app, create a personal
account in the system to record the participation hours and
other information of their CPD activities/courses. A simple
graph will then be provided to indicate if the licensees have
attained the recognised CPD hours required for the year
and met all the criteria and requirement. Licensees may also
search and enrol for activities organised by the PMSA and
pay for the fee, and confirm their attendance and completion
of the activity/course by scanning designated QR code after
attending the activity/course.
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Over 510 PMP licencees met the recommended participation
hours and requirement of the Scheme in 2022 and were
awarded certificates of recognition by the PMSA.
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CPD Voucher Scheme

The PMSA had launched the CPD Voucher Scheme in
February 2023. Any PMP licensee who has downloaded the
PMSA Mobile App and registered for a personal account on or
before 30 April 2023, and recorded at least one participation
in activities/courses held or recognised by the PMSA during
the period from 1 February to 30 April 2023, would receive a
chance to win up to $10,000 CPD Vouchers. The PMSA would
draw lot in May 2023 and select 5 eligible PMP winners. Each
of them would receive $10,000 vouchers for paying expenses
for completion of activities/courses recognised by the PMSA
within the designated period of 24 months (June 2023 to May
2025).
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Implementing the Anti-epidemic Support

Scheme

Further to the implementation of the Anti-epidemic Support
Scheme for Property Management Sector under the first
round of the Anti-epidemic Fund in 2020 commissioned by
the Government, the PMSA had been commissioned again in
February 2022 by the HAD to implement the Anti-epidemic
Support Scheme under the sixth round of the Anti-epidemic
Fund in order to help frontline PM workers strengthen their
capacity for personal protection and environmental hygiene as
well as to recognise their contributions in anti-epidemic work
since the onset of the fifth wave of the COVID-19 epidemic.

This round of the Anti-epidemic Support Scheme aimed to
provide financial support to frontline PM workers performing
duties related to security or environmental hygiene (including
full-time, part-time and temporary PM workers employed
by premises in a property, or employed directly by PMCs,
DMC Managers or OOs, or by their contractors) in private
residential, composite (commercial cum residential), industrial
and commercial building blocks (including shopping malls)
during the subsidised period (i.e. February to June 2022).
Each eligible PM worker could receive a subsidy of HK$2,000
monthly for a maximum of five months. Each building block
in an eligible property was subject to a total quota of 200
headcounts (of which 100 were specifically for frontline
cleansing and security staff engaged by premises within the
eligible property as well as frontline cleansing and security
workers of service contractors or subcontractors) for the
subsidy. Applications had to be made by PMCs, DMC
Managers or OOs of the eligible property. Applicants would be
provided with administrative fee (the maximum administrative
fee for each frontline PM worker with subsidy successfully
granted was $500 for making the application).

For frontline PM workers who provided cleansing or security
services to eligible building blocks which had no owners’
corporations or any form of residential organisations or PMCs
(i.e. “three-nil” buildings), they might submit applications
individually.
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The Anti-epidemic Support Scheme was launched and begun
accepting applications from 28 February 2022. The enhanced
arrangement for the ASPM was subsequently rolled out on 29
April 2022 and the deadline for application was 30 June 2022.

Benefitting Almost 190,000 Frontline PM Workers

Upon commissioning to implement the Anti-epidemic Support
Scheme, the PMSA immediately carried out the preparatory
work and set up a dedicated team to process the subsidy
applications and disbursement through lenient, simple and
expeditious procedures so that frontline PM workers could
be benefitted soonest possible. In the end, over 18,100
applications were processed, of which nearly $1.8 billion was
disbursed to successful applicants, benefitting nearly 190,000
frontline PM workers who provided environmental hygiene or
security services in around 40,000 building blocks.

Assisting in Subsidy Applications

The PMSA received and handled over 21,500 enquiries on
application for subsidy. Under the enhanced arrangement,
the PMSA also actively carried out coordination work to
encourage eligible parties to apply for subsidy on behalf of
workers engaged by premises/contractors in their properties
(i.e. workers who were not employed directly by PMCs, DMC
Managers or OOs of the property), and assisted frontline
PM workers who encountered difficulties when applying
for subsidy. All these cases covering premises such as
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Providing Anti-epidemic Support

supermarkets, banks, chain stores, etc., or cases involving
a change in PMC or termination of employment of eligible
workers who had provided services during the subsidised
period, had been resolved by the PMSA and the frontline
workers concerned were able to successfully apply for the
subsidy.

Conducting Audit

Having consulted the HAD and the ICAC, the PMSA formulated
the audit procedures for the Anti-epidemic Support Scheme
and had, in accordance with the procedures, drawn out 1,200
applications (around 10% of the approved applications) for
checking and review. In addition, the PMSA had also drawn
out 120 applications out of the above 1,200 applications
(around 10% of the first drawn applications) in accordance
with the procedures to conduct on-site review in order to verify
the application particulars further. The on-site review covered
different building types including large-scale housing estates
and single-block residential buildings, composite, industrial and
commercial buildings as well as shopping malls, etc., spanning
across Hong Kong Island, Kowloon and the New Territories.
Most of the on-site review work has already been completed.
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Financial Highlights

The PMSA is a self-financing statutory body. Its income is
generated from two sources, namely levy and licence fees.
The levy is collected in accordance with the PMSO and the
Property Management Services (Levy) Regulation (Cap.626A)
(Levy Regulation). With the implementation of the licensing
regime for the PM industry commencing on 1 August 2020, the
PMSA had also received licence fees from PMPs and PMCs.

The total income and expenditure of the PMSA for the year
were HK$51.39 million and HK$46.72 million respectively. This
resulted in a surplus of HK$4.67 million.

In addition, the PMSA received funding from the Government
for implementing the ASPM as well as administrative fee which
was utilised for meeting the direct and other relevant expenses
incurred for the ASPM.

In the initial set-up period, the PMSA had applied for a loan of
HK$22 million from the Government Loan Fund. The relevant
interest expense paid for the year was HK$0.32 million. The
first principal repayment of HK$4.4 million will be made on 1
April 2023.

The PMSA has to prepare financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the accounting standards,
financial reporting standards and interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and were
audited by an external auditor appointed by the PMSA. F.S. Li
& Co. was appointed by the PMSA as the external auditor to
provide audit services for the financial year 2022-23.
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Financial Highlights

Levy Collection

The Levy Regulation was implemented with effect from 1 July
2018. The PMSA collects levy from transferees in respect of
conveyance on sale of immovable properties (both residential
and non-residential) in Hong Kong which are chargeable with
stamp duty as defined under head 1(1) in the First Schedule
to the Stamp Duty Ordinance (Cap. 117). The amount of levy
payable for each leviable instrument is HK$350.

The property transaction volume in the year 2022-23 had
decreased as a result of the impact of the fifth wave of the
COVID-19 epidemic. The economy of Hong Kong and the
property transaction volume were further impacted with the
rising interest rates in the United States. The PMSA had
received a total levy income of HK$27.12 million from around
76,700 transactions in the year.

According to the PMSO, late payment or non-payment of levy
is subject to a penalty, the amount of which ranges from 2 to
10 times the amount of the levy, depending on the duration
of the delay. There were 118 cases of outstanding or late
payment dealt with during the year, involving a total penalty of
HK$0.26 million.

Licence Fees

The PMSA had altogether issued 5,942 PMP and PMC
licences in the year 2022-23. A total of HK$9.61 million licence
fees (including application fees) was received.
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To tie in with driving the implementation of the licensing regime
and the provision of related public services, the PMSA had
actively disseminated information to different stakeholders
through various channels during the year, with a view to
enhancing public understanding of the latest development of
the PMSA and the licensing regime.

In addition to keeping in close touch with the PM industry,
OO0s, public bodies and Government departments, the PMSA
also adopted an active approach to keep the media posted
about its latest development through the issue of press
releases. The PMSA issued 41 press releases during the year,
of which 20 were about the latest development of the PMSA,
11 were related to the licensing regime, and 10 concerning
the work progress of the Anti-epidemic Support Scheme. The
Chairperson of the PMSA also conducted media interview on
several occasions to share the latest development of the PM
industry licensing regime and the work progress of the PMSA
with the media.
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To enhance stakeholder communication and systematically
manage the communication, the PMSA had adopted an email
marketing platform during the year in order to establish a
comprehensive and easy-to-manage contact database and to
disseminate information in a more professional manner. The
PMSA could also make use of its analytical reports to identify
stakeholder interests so that relevant information could be
disseminated more effectively.

Strengthening Exchange among PM Industry in
Greater Bay Area

To facilitate exchanges among the PM industry in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the
PMSA conducted exchange with the delegation of the
Housing and Construction Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality
in February 2023 and arranged the Shenzhen-Hong Kong-
Macao PM Industry Exchange Forum in March 2023, whereby
representatives of the Hong Kong PM industry, the Shenzhen
Property Management Industry Association, Property
Management Business Association Macao and Guangdong
Property and Facilities Management Association of the Greater
Bay Area made exchanges in the areas of PM industry
operation and regulation, strengthening the cooperation and
integration of the PM industry within the Greater Bay Area and
driving advancement of the industry.
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Events and Activities

Participating in the 2nd International

Property Management & Procurement Expo

The International Property Management & Procurement Expo
is an annual major event of the PM industry in Hong Kong
which offers a platform for the PMSA to strengthen its ties and
exchange with the industry and enhance its public recognition
as well as the professional image of the industry.

Hence, in addition to officiating the opening ceremony for
the 2nd Expo and participating in the events held by different
industry professional bodies to share the latest development
of the licensing regime implemented by the PMSA, the PMSA
also set up for the first time a booth at the Expo to introduce
and display the work of the PMSA.

To commend frontline PM workers for remaining steadfast
in their duties, safeguarding the environmental hygiene of
properties and the health and safety of the public during the
COVID-19 epidemic, the PMSA also arranged a photo gallery
entitled Paying Tribute to Property Management Workers at the
Frontline of Combatting the Epidemic at the booth showcasing
the hard work of frontline PM workers in combatting the
epidemic.
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The PMSA also held the PM Pioneer Awards Ceremony at the
Expo to commend over 100 PMCs in Hong Kong for taking
the lead to be licensed by the PMSA and became the “PM
Pioneers” of the Hong Kong PM industry. The PMSA also
invited specialist in infectious diseases and Chair of Infectious
Diseases of the Department of Microbiology of the University
of Hong Kong Professor YUEN Kwok-yung to make a keynote
speech at the PMSA CPD Scheme, sharing with the industry
as to how PM may make properties safer and more hygienic,
thus preventing virus from spreading. The award ceremony
was attended by around 400 members of the PM industry in
person, and was also streamed live online.
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» 29.4.2022

REBERBEGRRAERESINFEER  THRIME LS
S IMBEFLEWREE -

The then Acting Secretary for Home Affairs Jack Chan Jick-
chi visited the PMSA to learn more about the application and
vetting progress of the Anti-epidemic Support Scheme.

BEMEERBEEEER

Members of the Federation of Hong Kong Property Management
Industry submitted PMC licence applications in bulk.

» 27.6.2022
EAMEREN A EEBRERERYE ABERE

=
g °

Members of the Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies
General Association submitted provisional PMP
licence applications collectively.

8.7.2022
HEREYEESEMEBE 2022 EEEABENEE RS-
Attended the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Property

Managers Property Management Week 2022 - Excellent
Practitioners Award Ceremony.

» 26.7.2022
EE&&;;E%%)%%E“%%- HRIBIPERZREAEMNRBEREZERER
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The Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs Alice Mak Mei-kuen, Under
Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs Clarence Leung Wang-ching
and representatives of the Home Affairs Department visited the PMSA.
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» 27.7.2022
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Visited the Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade Testing
Centre to learn about how truss-out bamboo scaffoldings
work.

30.7.2022 4
HEEERTIASEZRECER AEEREARE | BN EEHE o
Attended the Graduation Ceremony of the PMSA Specified Courses

organised by the School of Professional Education and Executive
Development, Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

» 18.8.2022
HEBERELEEe—gBEeKE
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Conducted exchanges with new council members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Housing.

8.9.2022 4

REBEREEEHE (FBDE)Integrate 20225% 185 Z 401 1
ESGH S AREEIELIE

Shared how to integrate ESG into facilities management in the
Integrate 2022 Forum of the International Facility Management
Association.

» 26.9.2022
HEBYEXEERESEGHEIN °
Conducted exchanges with members of

the Federation of Hong Kong Property
Management Industry.
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» 27.9.2022
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Attended the China Property Awards
Ceremony 2022.

20.9.2022 <<
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Members of the Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies General
Association submitted provisional PMP licence applications to
the PMSA in bulk.

» 5.10.2022
HEBMETHMEBeH —EESeRESEIT °

Conducted exchanges with new council members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators.
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25" Anniversary, Ceren emony of Etate Apents Atk

7.10.2022 4

HEHERIBEER25 AT ENME -

Attended the 25™ Anniversary Ceremony of the Estate Agents
Authority.

» 18.10.2022
HEEAERELIEE AT EBIERN KR\ EHIEI022 -

Attended the Hong Kong Institute of Housing Annual Dinner
cum Elite Awards 2022.
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28.10.2022
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Attended the Hong Kong Association of Property
Services Agents Inauguration and Award Ceremony.

31.10.2022 4
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Members of the Hong Kong Real Estate Agencies General
Association Central/Western District Branch submitted
provisional PMP licence applications collectively.

8.11.2022
HERANEHARHEEBNS  2ENBZERAHE
THE-

Jointly organised a media briefing with the ICAC to
introduce various anti-corruption work.

21.11.2022 4
ERMEEENSSERBEIMEARME RRIMRHAE -
Members of the Federation of Hong Kong Property

Management Industry submitted PMP and PMC licence
applications in bulk.

» 25.11.2022

17T WEr TR 11 M

HEEBYMEEERMBSR TG LBE2022 -

Attended the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Property
Managers Seminar and Annual Dinner 2022.
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» 30.11.2022
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Attended the Quality Property and Facility
Management Award 2022 Presentation Ceremony.

4.1.2023 4

BEMEEEMEEBRBRIBHMEA (F14)

Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Property Managers submitted provisional PMP (Tier 1)
licence applications collectively.

» 7.1.2023
HEEEMEETEMEE2023FE/MIE -

Attended the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Property Managers Launch Ceremony 2023.
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2.2.2023 4

HRImEFMEREARESH Y EREFERE
EEBBRNERMEXBIERA LR

Conducted exchanges with the delegation of the
Housing and Construction Bureau of Shenzhen
Municipality on the operation of the PM industry and
co-operation and integration of the industry within the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
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» 2.2.2023
HEEAERE  WERRGEESIEEEKRBM S EBE2023 -

Attended the Hong Kong Alliance of Professional Housing,
Property & Facility Management joint dinner 2023.
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Conducted exchanges with members of the Hong Kong
Association of Property Services Agents.

» 20.2.2023
HEEAMEREHBEXRINFHEEE -

Attended the Hong Kong Property Service Alliance
Lunar New Year greetings.

21.2.2023 4

HEEADEERBEE NERTZEEH
ki

Attended the 6" Executive Committee
Inauguration Ceremony of the Federation of
Hong Kong Property Management Industry.

» 1.3.2023
ERHEEGREETAN RN ERFEEIN -

Conducted exchanges with new council members of the
Chartered Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch.
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» 2.3.2023
HEBRREREEERE (B0 )30 RFBE

Attended the International Facility Management
Association Hong Kong Chapter 30" Anniversary
Dinner

14.3.2023 4
HEFTERLBEe T Ao BEERN -

Attended the Chartered Institute of Housing Asian Pacific
Branch Signboard Unveiling Ceremony.

» 23.3.2023

EEEHEREXBESSERBIEIYE AMRRHE

Members of the Hong Kong Property Agencies
Association Limited submitted PMP licence
applications in bulk.

27.3.2023 4
|

URBRMEXANRMEHR - TwmPEXEER
REBBRKNERYE RBIERS

Conducted exchanges with representatives of the
PM Industry in Shenzhen, Hong Kong and Macao
on the operation of the PM industry and co-
operation and integration of the industry within the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

» 28.3.2023
HEFRESETREETHRAESE
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Conducted exchanges with new council members
of the Building Services Operation and Maintenance
Executives Society.
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TO THE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY
(established in Hong Kong under the Property Management
Services Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Property
Management Services Authority (“PMSA”) set out on pages
89 to 114, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31st March 2023, and the statement of income and
expenditure, statement of changes in reserve and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements,
policies.

including a summary of significant accounting

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the PMSA as at 31st March
2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Property
Management Services Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
PMSA in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other Information

The PMSA is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the PMSA for the Financial
Statements

The PMSA is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Property Management
Services Ordinance, and for such internal control as the PMSA
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the PMSA is responsible
for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the PMSA
either intends to liquidate the PMSA or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The PMSA is responsible for overseeing its financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Part 6 of
Schedule 3 to the Property Management Services Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
PMSA'’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the PMSA.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the PMSA’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the PMSA’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the PMSA to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the PMSA regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

F. S. Li & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 4 July 2023
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023
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INCOME
Levies
Licence fees
Activities income
Bank interest
Administration fee
Other income

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Professional fees

Office accommodation and
related expenses

Corporate communications and
promotion

Levy collection charges

IT expenses

Depreciation

Auditor’s remuneration

Activities expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

SURPLUS AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

2022

BT

HK$

27,118,700 40,882,100
9,610,625 4,709,945
50,350 38,550
1,169,034 100,300
13,443,870 1,016,130
1,810 21,027
51,394,389 46,768,052
31,226,103 22,387,804
402,188 111,312
2,046,500 1,750,355
2,301,092 1,511,596
460,224 697,068
1,657,469 1,051,884
7,016,623 7,812,505
20,300 19,300
95,282 46,872
1,067,442 710,894
426,169 361,619
46,719,392 36,461,209
4,674,997 10,306,843
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M20234F3HA31H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31ST MARCH 2023

2022
B % BT
Note HK$
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
LIEYS &L Property and equipment 6 2,674,075 4,790,572
FREEE Right-of-use assets 7 6,048,858 10,173,080
8,722,933 14,963,652
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
e RIENRIE Deposits and prepayments 8 3,382,599 2,321,599
JFEE UK B R % L i MR Accounts and other receivables 9 9,451,842 2,467,996
HEim=1EARE 2 Bank deposits with maturity
RITIFER over 3 months 61,000,000 56,000,000
RITEF LIRS Bank balances and cash 144,480,571 396,585,420
218,315,012 457,375,015
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEMER N BT IR B Accounts payables and accruals 10 6,030,763 4,900,399
g SRTE Temporary receipts 11 139,051,058 387,713,000
HEaE Lease liabilities 12 4,154,650 4,102,246
PEIEU A Deferred income 13 26,724,871 25,066,766
BIFER Government loan 14 4,400,000 -
180,361,342 421,782,411
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 37,953,670 35,592,604
REERRBREE TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 46,676,603 50,556,256
ERBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEasE Lease liabilities 12 1,943,794 6,098,444
BIFER Government loan 14 17,600,000 22,000,000
19,543,794 28,098,444
BEE NET ASSETS 27,132,809 22 457,812
B RESERVE
Z2REAS Accumulated surplus 27,132,809 22,457,812

HNFECIOEEF114EMHBRER
2023F 7 A4 EYEEEXEERAER
MIRERR  THATRRESR

The financial statements on pages 89 to 114 were approved
and authorised for issue by the PMSA on 4™ July 2023 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Dr James WONG Kong-tin, BBS, JP Professor Eddie HUI Chi-man, MH, JP

Chairperson Vice-chairperson

BIKREL  ARFEE - KFHL ARENHE  KEBBHE - KFEL
E BIFE

MEEREEER

2022-23 EFHRE
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

RERER

Accumulated

surplus

BTT

HK$

M2021F4 818 At 1st April 2021 12,150,969
FEREKFEEZEKE Surplus and total comprehensive income

for the year 10,306,843

20223 A31HK2022F4 8 1H At 31st March 2022 and 1st April 2022 22,457,812
FEABLEZERE Surplus and total comprehensive income

for the year 4,674,997

7202343 A31H At 31st March 2023 27,132,809
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B 5T
Note

EETECREERE CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

FEAHK Surplus for the year
BLTHSEEL T - Adjustments for:
FLEWA Interest income

HEREFN S
B S

Interest on lease liabilities
Loan interest expense

e Depreciation
LEESEHR L EE Operating cash flows before
ReEn= changes in working capital
e RIENFIEE M Increase in deposits and
prepayments
JFEE UK B R % L b SR (Increase)/Decrease in accounts
(3&m),/ m and other receivables
FUGRIE CRid) /3 (Decrease)/Increase in temporary
receipts
EEUAIE AN Increase in deferred income

eI RRSR N FERT IR B
i, Ord)

Increase/(Decrease) in accounts
payables and accruals

SEEE (FTA), Bz NET CASH (USED IN)/
REFH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BRETEEERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
AR Purchase of property and
equipment
B HE Interest received
B3R = {E A 2 H 2 $R1T Increase in bank deposits with
FRIE N maturity over 3 months
BRETEFMACRESTEE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
METERERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BERHERS 2 EARES  Capital element of lease rentals
paid 19
ONEEMRSZMEES  Interest element of lease rentals
paid 19

XN EFRFE

Loan interest paid

BMETEFAZHEEEE  NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Iﬁﬁwﬁ,%%@m NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
W), iR CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
FYRERRESEEYHEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

ERELSRBASEEYHETE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

RERBALEEYHEEDH ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

ROTEFENES Bank balances and cash

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

2022
BT
HK$
4,674,997 10,306,843
(1,169,034) (100,300)
101,262 88,249
324,907 273,370
7,016,623 7,812,505
10,948,755 18,380,667
(1,061,000) (360,826)
(6,418,770) 1,997,252
(248,661,942) 381,476,500
1,658,105 15,833,724
1,130,364 (1,038,881)
(242,404,488) 416,288,436
(775,904) (426,884)
603,958 138,816
(5,000,000) (32,000,000)
(5,171,946) (32,288,068)
(4,102,246) (4,345,497)
(101,262) (88,249)
(324,907) (273,370)
(4,528,415) (4,707,116)
(252,104,849) 379,293,252
396,585,420 17,292,168
144,480,571 396,585,420
144,480,571 396,585,420

MEEBEEER
2022-23 EFHRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

Background

The Property Management Services Authority (“PMSA”)
was established under the Property Management
Services Ordinance (Cap. 626) which was enacted on 26"
May 2016, with the principal functions to regulate and
promote the development of the property management
services industry.

The office address of the PMSA is at Units 806-8, 8/F,
Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the functional currency of the PMSA.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collectively include all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the Property
Management Services Ordinance. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that were applied for the first time in the
current year. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs had no material effect on the results and
financial position of the PMSA for the current and
prior years.

The PMSA has not early adopted new and revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year. Explanation of this is included in Note 20.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Revenue recognition

Levy is recognized as income when it becomes due
and payable to the PMSA.

Bank interest income is recognized as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The PMSA recognizes revenue from contracts with
customers based on the performance obligations
identified in the contracts. Revenue is recognized
when (or as) the PMSA satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised service to a
customer who obtains the control of the service.
Further details of the PMSA’s revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

()  Administration fee, licence application fee and
activities income are recognized upon provision
of services.

(i)  Licence fees are recognized over time on a
straight-line basis over the licence period.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized in the statement of financial position
when the PMSA becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognized when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the PMSA transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the PMSA neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognized in
statement of income and expenditure.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligations specified in the relevant contract are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid
is recognized in the statement of income and
expenditure.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized and derecognized
on a trade date basis where the purchases or
sales of assets that under contracts whose
terms require delivery of the assets within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case
of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized immediately in statement of
income and expenditure.

Financial assets of the PMSA are classified under
financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial assets (including account and other
receivables) are classified under financial assets at
amortized cost if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

()  the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method less loss allowances for expected
credit losses.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The PMSA recognizes loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the PMSA
measures the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial
instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for
accounts and other receivables, or if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk
on a financial instrument (other than account and
other receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the PMSA measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses
that result from default events on that financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognized as an
impairment in statement of income and expenditure.

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority



B ISR aR

Financial Statements

2.

FESFEE (#)

() FETREERE
REBREMR  EBEHRET
BERMEREEEEANE
ELRBERBR - BIFERMEE

FZEENAREEE - AJiE
BEDEAAEBERLEER
LEREBEMETHNRSE -
HRWEEEERKREE &%
BEARMEZEAKOEEE -
MR EE BRI AR R E R
A o i P LA E AT U EHE E A
AFFHBR AN EE - BB O
BEER - ERDREBREN
GEREERMERANES
EFERRBBEERRSEE
EZEEREE - BERES
BRECFEFABRBRKIER
A o

(9) MERRE
YIS MR AR AR REHITE
N 2 REBKIIER -
FTEAERENEDELRE
AR AR IR (BE @ IHE T
fHEtAME A FEE - A ERE
8
E PN 34
WRERE 54
REAREE 54F
THEMERE 54
VEEBEEER

2022-23 FEFEHE

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, wherever
there is any indication that an item of property and
equipment is impaired, the recoverable amount of
the asset should be estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset to
its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss should
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined has no
impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
surplus or deficit in the year in which the reversals
are recognized.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method as follows:

Computers and softwares 3 years
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

(i)

Leases

Leases are recognized as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased
assets are available for use by the PMSA. Right-
of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation
of right-of-use assets is calculated to write off their
cost over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid,
initial direct costs and the office reinstatement
costs. Lease liabilities are initially recognized at the
present value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the lease liabilities.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low value assets are recognized as
expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases
with an initial lease term of 12 months or less.

Accounts and other receivables, and contract
assets and contract liabilities

A receivable is recognized when the PMSA’s
right to consideration is unconditional. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognized before the
PMSA has an unconditional right to consideration,
the amount is presented as a contract asset.
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(e) above).
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2.

FESFEE (#)

(i)

)]

(k)

U]

(m)
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

)

(k)

U]

(m)

Accounts and other receivables, and contract
assets and contract liabilities (continued)

A contract asset is recognized when the PMSA
recognizes revenue before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment
terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for expected credit losses in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(e) above and
are reclassified as receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional. A
contract liability is recognized when the customer
pays consideration, or has an unconditional right
to consideration (in such case, a corresponding
receivable is recognized), before the PMSA
recognizes the related revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits with banks within 3 months to maturity
from date of deposit.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the PMSA has a
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the PMSA.

Interest expenses

Interest expenses are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
related party includes a person and an entity as
defined below:

() A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the PMSA if that person:

(@) has control or joint control of the PMSA,;

(b) has significant influence over the PMSA;
or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the PMSA.

(i) An entity is related to the PMSA if any of the
following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the PMSA are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

() Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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2.

FESTBR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(n) BEEAL () (n) Related parties (continued)
) ZEBREERIK () The entity is a post-employment benefit
HEERA @@@Z plan for the benefit of employees of either
ERMEEE MR the PMSA or an entity related to the
SN2 z‘& g = :Jr PMSA. If the PMSA is itself such a plan,
gl - REERER the sponsoring employers are also related
ZEt ilJ EHEB to the PMSA.
METHEERAB
B o
( ZERBW L) ()  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
FBATES SR EF by a person identified in (i).
PR o
(@) ®()(a)FTIE AT (@) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
HERBBEALE influence over the entity or is a member
NEBELERZE of the key management personnel of the
EEBEEKE o entity.
h ZEBXEMES () The entity, or any member of a group
EE T ERKE A of which it is a part, provides key
AIMEEREMHE management personnel services to the
Eﬂﬁ)\ﬁﬁ&i’% PMSA.
EAREHKERK B I & Close members of the family of a person are those
2 SXZBEATE MR family members who may be expected to influence,
ZERBRINKEKE ° or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
BIE 3. Taxation
RIBCHH IS GBI E87 1k - BEBERE The PMSA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under
R BRBEBFER o section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
F 4. Expenditure
2022
BT
HK$
FEZHBE The following expenses have been
ITIEBER : included in determining the surplus:
B THA Staff costs
¥ra MH MR Salaries and other benefits 30,336,800 21,855,867
REMPEMRETEINMHZ  Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plan 889,303 531,937
31,226,103 22,387,804

MEEREEER
2022-23 FEFEHE



MBER

5.

Finance costs

2022
BT
HK$
HEBGENE Interest on lease liabilities 101,262 88,249
BEXMEST Loan interest expense 324,907 273,370
426,169 361,619
MERRZE 6. Property and equipment
EREME BAERE  HRERRE HEVEEE @5t
Computers Office Furniture Leasehold
and softwares equipment  and fixtures improvements Total
BT BT BT o BT
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
B Cost
H2021F4 810 At st April 2021 4,628,973 201,991 867,876 8,239,009 13,937,849
NE Additions 400,585 8,499 7,300 10,500 426,884
#2022%3A31H At 31st March 2022 and
K2022F4 A1H 1st April 2022 5,029,558 210,490 875,176 8,249,509 14,364,733
NE Additions 691,031 70,553 4,520 9,800 775,904
R2023F3A31H At 31st March 2023 5,720,589 281,043 879,696 8,259,309 15,140,637
e Accumulated depreciation
R2021F4A1H At 1st April 2021 2,372,004 57,206 365,534 3,509,492 6,304,236
FEE Charge for the year 1,405,696 40,965 174,062 1,649,202 3,269,925
#H2022F3A31H At 31st March 2022 and
K2022F4F1H 1st April 2022 3,777,700 98,171 539,596 5,158,694 9,574,161
FEME Charge for the year 1,017,445 48,851 175,714 1,650,391 2,892,401
20233 A31H At 31st March 2023 4,795,145 147,022 715,310 6,809,085 12,466,562
IR FHE Net book value
#R2023F3A31H At 31st March 2023 925,444 134,021 164,386 1,450,224 2,674,075
R2022F3A31H At 31st March 2022 1,251,858 112,319 335,580 3,090,815 4,790,572
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7. FHREEE 7. Right-of-use assets
BT
HKS
AR Cost
R2021F4 A1 B&# At 1st April 2021 12,384,402
FREE Additions during the year 12,372,665
& Em e Written off upon expiry of lease (11,414,308)
R2022F3A31H ~ 2022F4B1H K At 31st March 2022, 1st April 2022 and
20233 A31 B&64 31st March 2023 13,342,759
AIIE Accumulated depreciation
R2021F4AH1H At 1st April 2021 10,041,407
FEWE Charge for the year 4,542,580
TSR minss Written off upon expiry of lease (11,414,308)
202293 A31H &2022F4 1R At 31st March 2022 and 1st April 2022 3,169,679
FEFE Charge for the year 4,124,222
MR20234F3 A31H At 31st March 2023 7,293,901
REFE Net book value
R20234F3 A31 H#E ¢ At 31st March 2023 6,048,858
R2022F3 A31 H&E % At 31st March 2022 10,173,080
EERESEHEEHRAAETYE The PMSA is the lessee of several properties held under
MOV R AE36EA - EhmmnE operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
WREEREHTEVGBHEmE period of 36 months. Two of the leases offer the PMSA
RERMSHSEHIFARIERE - an option to renew the leases for further 3 years at
EHEHTIBESIAEHEE - prevailing market rent after expiration of the initial period.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
8. BEREMNNE 8. Deposits and prepayments
e RENRELEHEEMARSE Deposits and prepayments include deposits related to
¥R S4E5H1,266,169870(2022: office rental and utilities deposits of HK$1,266,169 (2022:
1,266,16987T) * TREAR —F &I HK$1,266,169) that are expected to be recovered after
[@ o one year.

MHEBREEER
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9. Accounts and other receivables

2022

BT

HK$

FE WK Levy receivables 2,677,222 2,450,352
H b U 3R Other receivables 6,191,900 -
JE UL A B, Interest receivables 582,720 17,644
9,451,842 2,467,996

REBEVKEER  EERSRE
i 5l s R e Bt R YR 2 (E &
THE—FE - UERES B
AHEREEE °

BEBEER  BERRAMUK
BEETEEAFFORERAE
BUE T B AR -
P L 5 T L M R 0 B B 5 T
m

At the end of each financial reporting period, the PMSA’s
levy receivables and other receivables were individually
assessed for impairment, based on their credit history.

Based on past experience, the PMSA considers that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these receivables as there has not been any significant
unfavorable change in credit quality and the receivables
are considered fully recoverable. The ageing analysis of
the levy receivables and other receivables is as follows:

2022
BT
HK$
1—90H 1 -90 days 6,741,722 2,440,902
91—180H 91 - 180 days 1,997,400 9,100
#im180H Over 180 days 130,000 350
8,869,122 2,450,352

EAERR R ESER 10. Accounts payables and accruals
2022
BT
HK$
FEfT AR AR Accounts payables 225,251 614,806
HEMEMFRIEFESTEE  Other payables and accruals 286,268 304,918

Al Provisions for

— KM e — Gratuity 3,726,692 2,285,754
— K& - Leave 762,123 684,879
—WAEERRER - Office reinstatement cost 1,030,429 1,010,042
6,030,763 4,900,399

Annual Report 2022-23
Property Management Services Authority 105



106

B ISR aR

Financial Statements

11.

12.

T WFKE
EERERBEHHEER B
HITEBFRBFES &R
MERES | TRINTYEEEEXR
(REFEMRZAB) LR SIRRT
g (mEIRE]) - RATRYDE
ETEMEIETEMMEHOE N
DA E RIRH B B IE

[MEEE 5 ERLAERE
memgET (AREMAET)
TEREMNBERELERETAIR
BEAEBHEIENAIRYEERER
T (BIERMARL B T) RHE B
& BN {PI h0 SR (B A BT R IR 1R
BE - UFEMMEERKRBE
TARZ B K 5 B IR TAE o

11.

Temporary receipts

To give recognition in anti-epidemic efforts and provide
financial support to frontline property management
workers, the Government has established the “Anti-
epidemic Support Scheme for Environmental Hygiene and
Security Staff in Property Management Sector” (“ASPM”)
under the sixth round of the “Anti-epidemic Fund”. The
PMSA has been commissioned by the Home Affairs
Department to implement the ASPM.

The objective of the ASPM is to provide financial support
to frontline property management workers performing
duties related to security or environmental hygiene (i.e.
cleansing and security workers) in private residential and
composite (i.e. commercial cum residential) buildings, as
well as industrial and commercial buildings, with a view
to improving their personal protection and environmental
hygiene, and giving recognition to their committed anti-
epidemic efforts since the onset of the fifth wave of the
epidemic.

HESE 12. Lease liabilities
2022
BT
HK$
W3H31H At 31st March
HEaEsFEER Maturity profile of lease liabilities
- —FR — Within 1 year 4,203,508 4,203,508
- —FRBRE=ZFRK — After 1 year but within 3 years 1,948,571 6,152,079
HESE (RER) Lease liabilities (undiscounted) 6,152,079 10,355,587
BRIRE Discount amount (53,635) (154,897)
HEAE(BLR) Lease liabilities (discounted) 6,098,444 10,200,690
DA Classified as:
mEBE Current portion 4,154,650 4,102,246
EMBEE Non-current portion 1,043,794 6,098,444
6,098,444 10,200,690
HESA31HILEE Year ended 31st March
HESERAEZS : Movements of the carrying amount
of lease liabilities:
s BR) At the beginning of the reporting
period 10,200,690 2,173,622
ES i) Non-cash changes
—HEaEFE — Interest on lease liabilities 101,262 88,249
—HEBELER — Recognition of lease liabilities = 12,372,665
HWeH Cash payments (4,203,508) (4,433,746)
HEREK At the end of the reporting period 6,098,444 10,200,690
MEEBEEES

2022-23 FEFEHE



13. EEZEWA

13. Deferred income

2022
BT
HK$

BN Deferred income in respect of
1THER* Administration fee* = 10,983,870
hé AR B Licence fees* 26,724,871 14,082,896
26,724,871 25,066,766

EREBMACTRBREHBAERES
ERBITIMESRAE XN
WITHE » EREARRE S H
EXRHEERRMERIEER
HER BN -

THREB ZFEWFERREHY 2
BEEWAEHRCEREAFEEZ
W25 7410,983,870/8 7T (2022 : &
JL) e

BB ERE (WX E R R K
51) 1) hR PR 55 B A MER A R BR AR
MEARIEE R AR S B H R
HER BN -

[RRREZFERRBRREHNZ
RERAGEHREERBERNFEZ
I %5 45,873,608/ 7L (2022 -
2,390,946 7T ) °

14. BURER

Deferred income represents the administration fee that
received from the Home Affairs Department to implement
the ASPM, and is deferred and recognized as income in
the statement of income and expenditure on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.

Revenue in respect of the administration fee recognized
during the year that was included in the opening balance
of deferred income is HK$10,983,870 (2022: nil).

Deferred income represents the licence fees received from
the licensees in accordance with the provisions in the
Property Management Services Ordinance, and is deferred
and recognized as income in the statement of income and
expenditure over the licence period.

Revenue in respect of the licence fees recognized during
the year that was included in the opening balance of
deferred income is HK$5,873,608 (2022: HK$2,390,946).

14. Government loan

2022
BT
HK$

BRERNEZIRLIT : The loan is repayable as follows:
—FR Within 1 year 4,400,000 -
Bl —F More than 1 year 17,600,000 22,000,000
22,000,000 22,000,000
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14.

15.

16.

BRER (&)

BN ERBERFEER - UWHE
HREDSFEE - BEAHARE
2020/21 B B 2 REREAE £ 2023/24
PHEE - FEgHFE - RIENE
BT ERERGEMBFERN
S3AB1AX T o F B LAZEFTIE % F
K REKREEERENSFTE -

14.

Government loan (continued)

The loan from Government is unsecured and repayable
by 5 equal annual instalments. The first repayment is
deferred from the financial year 2020/21 to the financial
year 2023/24. From the day on which the loan was drawn
for the first time, interest is accrued and payable on 31st
March of each financial year. Interest is calculated at “no-
gain-no-loss” rate on the basis of simple interest rate on
the outstanding loan amount.

BEXE2EREE 15. Capital commitments for acquisition of
equipment
2022
BT
HK$
ERKERELRESE Contracted but not provided for 982,620 2,178,191
EREBEALRS 16. Material related party transactions

EFERNEEREBMEALE
THRREEERZZWT

During the year the PMSA undertook the following
material transactions with related parties in the normal
course of its operation:

2022

BIT

HK$

FE2EEAB MR Remuneration for key management
personnel

RHIE TEF Short-term employee benefits 5,838,430 5,701,374
BERRETR Post-employment benefits 835,575 750,653
6,674,005 6,452,027

FMeE ATETRA] (RHE
4) -

MEEBEEER
2022-23 EFHRE

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
4).
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(a)

(b)

17. Financial assets and liabilities

tREEREBEER (a) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
2022
BT
HK$
TREE Financial assets
REEE — B A{E © Current assets — at amortized cost;
e Deposits 1,266,169 1,266,169
TR AT B AR 2 A M 3R Accounts and other receivables 9,451,842 2,467,996
BB = {8 A BIH 2 1T Bank deposits with maturity
TR over 3 months 61,000,000 56,000,000
RITEEFERIRE Bank balances and cash 144,480,571 396,585,420
216,198,582 456,319,585
=N Financial liabilities
FERBAE - HEH Non-current liabilities — at amortized
R AE cost:
HEBE Lease liabilities 1,943,794 6,098,444
BURER Government loan 17,600,000 22,000,000
TREIEE — IRESEANE - Current liabilities — at amortized cost:
FWGRIE Temporary receipts 139,051,058 387,713,000
HEBE Lease liabilities 4,154,650 4,102,246
BUTER Government loan 4,400,000 -
FERTBR R I FEEHIE B Accounts payables and accruals 6,030,763 4,900,399
173,180,265 424,814,089
BERABREENEERBEER (b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

ERBEET  EERITE
17 7E 8 A B 9 E LB B S
% o HAERAULIT :

() FEEE
EERMFTEEMAER
BFER o

WM DT
M2023F3H31H ' &
HEMELEFATHR—F
DEMETA EME SR
N EERMNFERA
#5418 51220,000%
TL(2022 : Bt g
Hn220,000/87T) °

In the normal course of the operation, the PMSA
does not expose to significant foreign currency risk

and price risk. Other risks are described below:

() Interest rate risk

The PMSA’s interest bearing financial liability is

government loan.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2023, had the interest rate been
1% higher/lower and with all other variables
held constant, the PMSA’s surplus for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$220,000
(2022: surplus would decrease/increase by

HK$220,000).
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17. SREE
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(ii)

(i)
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17.
(b)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Credit risk

The PMSA’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at banks and is insignificant because
the counterparties are the banks with high
credit rating.

The PMSA does not hold any collateral to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

The PMSA has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with respect to the services provided
to clients; the credit risk is therefore limited.

The PMSA considers the credit risk on
its financial assets is in line with original
expectations, and no significant credit losses
are expected.

Liquidity risk

The PMSA’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.



17. SMEEREE ()

(b)

(c)

17. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

BREEBEENBEEREE (b) Financial risk management objectives and

(&) policies (continued)

(i)  TEEZEE () (i) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRETRBEEERRE The following table details the contractual
HARZAHEH A FE maturities at the end of the reporting period of
HEemMaeEN DT - the PMSA’s financial liabilities:

REFTRE —FRg
FEtE ARRLRE REX BE—F
Contractual Within

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or More than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$

120233 A31H At 31st March 2023

TEaE Current liabilities

LN Temporary receipts 139,051,058 139,051,058 139,051,058 =
HEARE Lease liablities 4,154,650 4,203,508 4,203,508 =
BIFER Government loan 4,400,000 4,400,000 4,400,000 =
[ENERF B TEE  Accounts payables and accruals 6,030,763 6,030,763 6,030,763 =

ERBER Non-current liabilities
MEakE Lease liabllities 1,943,794 1,948,571 = 1,948,571
RFEH Government loan 17,600,000 17,600,000 = 17,600,000
173,180,265 173,233,900 153,685,329 19,548 571

1202253 A431H At 31st March 2022

EIE Current liabilities

Elhsa Temporary receipts 387,713,000 387,713,000 387,713,000 -
MEakE Lease liabilties 4,102,246 4,203,508 4,203,508 -
JEfERZRMERER  Accounts payables and accruals 4,900,399 4,900,399 4,900,399 -

EE =N Non-current liabilities
MEafE Lease liabilties 6,098,444 6,152,079 - 6,152,079
BRER Government loan 22,000,000 22,000,000 - 22,000,000
424814089 424,968,986 396,316,907 28,152,079

REE (c) Fair values

a

20284 202243 A31H
FrEsREERAGBZEERR
HRAABEYEERER -2
REEDZERARASREN
REMEAEREMEE o

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair values
as at 31st March 2023 and 2022. The fair value is
estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rate.
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18.

19.

EXEE
RMRBEABREZENR  BEERZ
BARBEEERZRERMR -

EEREEEANBEER

(@) REEERFELENEED
AR

b) EREERNERE-

EERTHRAREARNRZZER
BRBEEZRAREE  HEKRRE
ETRRRER - AT HE N R
EERZEENREARTRK - KXEE
BOREEFAEEE o

MEFTHEERENYR

TRFVNEERAREADELR
ENES  BEASIFRSE
BHMELIDEEINRE/EETR
EIRRBESRESNEERNA
EREBRADELARELTH RS

MEMAIE -

18.

19.

Capital management

For the purpose of capital disclosure, the capital structure
of the PMSA consists of its accumulated surplus.

The PMSA’s capital management objectives are:

(@) to ensure the PMSA’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

(b) to achieve the PMSA’s goals.

The PMSA regularly reviews and manages its capital
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets so as to ensure
adequacy for both operational and capital needs. The
capital management strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the PMSA’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the PMSA’s statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

HEBE
Lease liabilities

HRFER
Government loan
BT

HK$

BT
HK$

M2022F4F1H At 1st April 2022 10,200,690 22,000,000 32,200,690

BMETBH2HESRESE © Changes from financing cash flows:

I EHFE Loan interest paid = (324,907) (324,907)

ENEEMES2EATS  Capital element of lease rentals paid (4,102,246) = (4,102,246)

DNEEMS A S5  Interest element of lease rentals paid (101,262) = (101,262)
5,997,182 21,675,093 27,672,275

Hith 28 : Other changes:

XA ST Loan interest expense = 324,907 324,907

HEABEME Interest on lease liabilities 101,262 - 101,262

20233 A31H At 31st March 2023 6,098,444 22,000,000 28,098,444

MEEBEEER
2022-23 EFHRE



10. REZEBMEELEEENHEEKR 19. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

(#&) financing activities (continued)
HEBE BER &%
Lease liabilities ~ Government loan Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
R20215E4H18 At 1st April 2021 2,173,522 22,000,000 24,173,522
BMETEH 2 BEREEE . Changes from financing cash flows:
FREFFE Loan interest paid - (273,370) (273,370)
ENHEMSZEARES  Capital element of lease rentals paid (4,345,497) - (4,345,497)
ENHEEME2F S5 Interest element of lease rentals paid (88,249) - (88,249)
(2,260,224) 21,726,630 19,466,406
Hit g8 : Other changes:
AEEHAZBAESERE  Recognition of lease liabilities
during the year 12,372,665 - 12,372,665
ERFELH Loan interest expense - 273,370 273,370
HERENE Interest on lease liabilities 88,249 - 88,249
202293831 H At 31st March 2022 10,200,690 22,000,000 32,200,690
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EEAERFAEMRERNE
8 B35 R 22 R
EREGHMAGDEMNAFER
RARH IR IEARRF 7 HRR R ER A
MZIRER] R ER - BRI R
EERERE TIFIR -

(BBREHER) E15 R (BB
R R B 25 2 5T
EHBERE

(BHBEEADEBRZBTAR
st

(BAEER)F1RZETAE
BN RBAREBMIERE?

(BB IEHREEA) B 1652 53]
ARG AEa R

(BBRE)ESRZBTAHG
BEZ2T): HRAHRERE
KEHEE 2 FROEMER LD
7

' 20231 A1ESZ BRIz &
STEARIAE AR

2 R2024F1 A1 Rk Btz 2
AR AR

EERAHELHIIMEEITINE
BUMBREENREBGHERN
ER T EHEE R MRK P HER
MEMELBEAFE -

MHEBREEER
2022-23 FEFEHE

20.

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued but not yet effective for the year

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the current
accounting year and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following
items which may be relevant to the PMSA.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates!

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current?

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2024

The PMSA anticipates that the application of these new
and revised HKFRSs and HKASs will not have a material
effect on the amounts recognized in the PMSA’s financial
statements.
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Prescribed Property Management Services

T RERIFT R REE RS

Seven Categories of Prescribed Property Management Services

YR —REERS N, BTYRIREER
© @ e General management services ) Facility management relating
FE®" (clating to a property ¢ to a property
YIEFTBERIENERE BYIXEEMIHAE
’ﬁ’ Management of the ,,'A\ WADERERE
environment of a property %, Human resources management

relating to personnel involved in
the management of a property

YIENHES RERKE
Repair, maintenance and » -
improvement of a property ﬁ BT MEEENLERE

&> Legal services relating to the
=\ management of a property

BEFIRNTBEREEER
Finance and asset management
relating to a property

H 1= DESIGN CONCEPT

N E nrersses
<A PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
PMSA Heruimee: '

MEEREXZENELARS TSR TRAERY TESL - ME

0292 EERREBRBENRBREEEHEETIERE « HI5T
) ARERSEEESEET] RDTENELBNEE 9%

FeEEER  AEER  —FEBEVERLER -

The property management industry is like a kaleidoscope,
diverse, involving different fields and ever-changing. The prism
that drives the changes of the pattern in the kaleidoscope
represents the PMSA promoting the industry to undergo a
smooth transition and moving forward towards a new era of
property management through the “three-pronged approach”
of regulating through licensing, setting professional standards
and encouraging continuing professional development.
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